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4 
CHAIRPERSON DALLY: Good afternoon. I'd like 

first thank the witnesses and members of the Task Force 

o are here today. And I will introduce them beginning 

— and members of the House Judiciary Committee that are 

re. I'll introduce them beginning on my right. 

presentative Frank Dermody from Allegheny County. On my 

ft is Scot Chadwick from Bradford and Susquehanna County, 

d Jerry Birmelin from Pike and Wayne Counties. 

I'd also like to welcome Jane Mendlow, 

search Analyst with the House Judiciary Committee, who's 

re on behalf of Representative Blaum. Representative 

aum is the prime sponsor of the two bills that are the 

bject matter for the hearing today. 

I appreciate your interest in this very 

portant issue that we're going to be taking a look at 

day. We're here today to talk about Pennsylvania's 

option laws, some of the problems that adoptive parents 

ve been encountering during the process, and the 

tential solutions to those problems that we can introduce 

en in the General Assembly. 

As I stated, we'll be discussing two bills 

troduced by Representative Blaum dealing with consent to 

option, adoption counseling, and some other issues. 

'11 also be hearing from people who are on the front 

nes of the issue, so to speak, adoptive parents and those 
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5 
uples who want to adopt a child. 

I think it's important that we as legislators 

d policymakers hear from the people who are in the 

ocess of dealing with an adoption, for they are in the 

st position to shed light on what parts of the system are 

rking and what parts of the system need improvement. 

Right now I don't think any of us claim to be 

perts on the issue. And hopefully, the testimony today 

11 enlighten us all and we'll be able to determine what 

r jobs should be as legislators. So I look forward to 

rking closely with members of the Task Force, parents, 

vocates, and any other party that has an interest in this 

gislation and in the adoption process in Pennsylvania. 

So thank you and welcome. A few housekeeping 

asures. We do have some testimony that is going to be 

bmitted for the record. Jim Adams, who is a private 

torney in Lancaster County and active with the Adoption 

visory Committee of the Joint State Government 

amission, will be submitting written testimony on behalf 

an anonymous client of his. 

We also have some written testimony that's 

ing to be read into the record from Melanie Miller, who I 

derstand is here. And her testimony will be read into 

e record. And if there's other issues like that, we will 

Idress them as we move forward. 
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6 
With that being said, I'd like to recognize 

ne Mendlow, the Research Analyst for Representative Blaum 

i for the House Judiciary Committee, who would like to 

ssent a statement. 

MS. MENDLOW: Thank you, Representative Dally, 

r convening this hearing on legislation that 

presentative Blaum has introduced to improve adoption 

ocedures in our state. I will be reading the 

presentative's remarks, as he could not be here today. 

"I deeply regret that I am unable to attend 

day's hearing but assure you that I am determined to see 

option reform become a reality in Pennsylvania. I look 

rward to reviewing the recommendations from today's 

aring and working with my colleagues and all those who 

ve an interest in this area of law to fashion changes 

at address deficits in current law. 

These bills address issues related to the 

en-ended period of time given birth parents to revoke 

eir consent to an adoption in Pennsylvania. Unlike the 

st majority of states, Pennsylvania law permits a parent 

revoke his consent to an adoption for any reason and at 

y time prior to either the court's final adoption decree 

the court's termination of parental rights, whichever 

curs first. 

Pennsylvania has one of the longest periods 

TROUTMAN REPORTING SERVICE 
(570) 622-6850 



7 
r revocation of consents, which puts the entire adoption 

ocess at enormous legal risk, undermines the stability of 

e child's placement, causes unnecessary emotional anguish 

r adoptive parents, and prevents birth parents from 

inging closure to a difficult decision in their lives. 

A survey of how nearby states treat revocation 

a consent to an adoption reveals that Pennsylvania's law 

the most open-ended. Maryland has a 30-day revocation 

riod; New York, a 30-day period if the child is placed 

th an agency, or 45 days if in a private placement; 

rginia, a 15-day period; the District of Columbia, a 

-day period; and Delaware, a 60-day period. 

Connecticut makes the consent irrevocable 

less the court finds fraud, duress, or coercion. West 

rginia provides up to 20 days unless the written 

ecution of the consent advises the parent that the 

nsent is irrevocable. Massachusetts makes the consent 

revocable, as does New Jersey if the child is placed with 

adoption agency. 

The 1991 Legislative Budget and Finance 

mmittee Report on adoption processes in Pennsylvania, 

ich reviewed other states' adoption laws and obtained 

mments from adoption experts in our state, recommended 

at a birth parent's consent to an adoption should be 

revocable after 30 days. 
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8 
This recommendation is reflected in House 

lis 1533 and 1838. Both bills propose to shorten the 

vocation period to 30 days following the execution of 

nsent. However, House Bill 1838 goes further, linking 

is shortened period with improvements in adoption-related 

tinseling for birth parents. And this is done to ensure 

e birth parent is making an informed decision regarding 

s consent to an adoption. 

House Bill 1838 requires the offer of 

option-related counseling to a parent who consents to an 

option or voluntarily relinquishes his rights; permits 

optive parents to pay for adoption-related counseling; 

quires that counseling be provided through an approved 

option agency; and expands access to each county's 

option counseling fund, which currently is funded by a 

5 court fee for filing a report of intention to adopt. 

House Bill 1838 also tries to ensure more 

nality to the adoption process by terminating the rights 

putative fathers who have not taken concrete steps to 

re for and support their children. I know all of us will 

nefit from this hearing and will want to work together to 

ke improvements in adoption law. 

Thank you for allowing me to offer these 

troductory remarks." 

CHAIRPERSON DALLY: Thank you, Jane. And 
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9 
ose remarks will be entered into the record. And before 

call our first person to testify, I'd like to recognize 

presentative Kathy Manderino from Philadelphia County 

o's just joined us. 

Okay. Nancy Marcus. Nancy is Chair of the 

option Advisory Committee, Joint State Government 

mmission. Welcome, Nancy. 

MS. MARCUS NEWMAN: Hi. Thank you. Good 

ternoon. 

CHAIRPERSON DALLY: I'm sorry. Nancy Marcus 

wman. I stopped short there. Sorry. 

MS. MARCUS NEWMAN: I'm Nancy Marcus Newman. 

d I serve as Chair of the Joint State Government 

mmission Advisory Committee on Adoption Law, which 

s — which has been in the process of actively reviewing 

nnsylvania's present adoption law since January of 1998. 

The Commission was directed, through a 

ncurrent resolution adopted by both the House and the 

nate, to establish a task force and an advisory committee 

study the Commonwealth's adoption law and make 

commendations regarding the law to the General Assembly. 

The members of the Advisory Committee on 

option Law include birth parents, adoptive parents, adult 

optees, child advocates, persons working in the adoption 

eld, lawyers, judges, a court administrator, a professor, 
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10 
i a representative of the Department of Public Welfare. 

Four subcommittees have been formed to study 

ecific areas of adoption law and have held numerous 

etings to date. The subcommittees are Placement and 

sts, Search and Information, Special Needs, and 

rminations. 

Materials being reviewed by the subcommittees 

elude the Federal Adoption and Safe Families Act of 1997; 

e Model State Adoption Act, which was developed under the 

thority of the Federal Child Abuse Prevention and 

eatment and Adoption Reform Act of 1978; the Uniform 

option Act. We're looking at Legislative Budget and 

nance Committee reports, we're looking at case law, 

option literature, and the laws of other states, as well 

legislation introduced here in Pennsylvania. 

Procedurally, the Committee will prepare 

oposed amendments to the Adoption Act and present them to 

e Commission's Task Force on Adoption Law, which is 

aired by Senator Stewart Greenleaf. If approved by the 

sk force, legislation containing the Committee's 

commendations will be introduced in the General Assembly 

task force members. 

The proposed legislation will be accompanied 

a report from the advisory committee containing official 

mments. We're working hard to reach our goal of 
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esenting a report to the General Assembly in the late 

ring of 2000. We hope that the Legislature will take 

to consideration our recommendations in formulating the 

anges in the current adoption law which are necessary to 

omote the best interests of Pennsylvania's children. 

The advisory committee is currently involved 

a diligent effort on behalf of the Legislature to 

amine complex adoption issues which must be viewed 

mprehensively with the Adoption Act as a whole and 

lanced against other issues throughout the act so that 

1 changes will have their intended effect. 

In fact, providing a much needed comprehensive 

view of adoption as a whole in Pennsylvania was one of 

e reasons for formation of the task force and advisory 

mmittee. The Adoption Act is a seamless web of issues 

d procedures. By making a specific, seemingly sensible 

ange at one place, legislation can have unexpected and 

ssibly undesired consequences elsewhere. 

The Adoption Act directly affects the 

11-being of our most vulnerable citizens, our children. 

eat care must be taken in promulgating changes to these 

ws so that our children's best interests are served. I 

n assure you that our advisory committee, which has been 

trusted with the comprehensive review of this act, is 

ing its work well and always with the children as our 
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12 
imary focus and concern. 

We have been working very hard at preparing 

oposed amendments to the Adoption Act. Both our 

bcommittees and the advisory committee as a whole have 

scussed the issues addressed in House Bill 1533 and House 

11 1838. And we're currently in the process of preparing 

proposed comprehensive draft of suggested legislative 

endments that will address many of the concerns voiced 

day relating to consents to adoption, time periods and 

ocedures for revocation of consent, relinquishment of 

rental rights, rights of putative fathers, adoption 

arings, adoption counseling, reports and filing 

ocedures, and medical history and other information. 

The advisory committee is still in the process 

discussing these issues, and these are the issues 

dressed in the bills which are the subject of today's 

scussions. But it's too early for the advisory committee 

make any substantive statements regarding these 

rticular bills. But please be assured that in all of our 

liberations, all of these concerns are receiving the much 

eded attention that they deserve. 

We're delighted that a public hearing was 

heduled to discuss these critical issues that so deeply 

feet the well-being of Pennsylvania's children. In 

rming the advisory committee, great attention was paid to 
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13 
suring that all groups of concerned citizens involved in 

affected by adoption in Pennsylvania were included, and 

are pleased to be here and to hear the perspective of 

perts and members of the public on these issues. 

The advisory committee is very interested in 

e testimony presented today and is taking into 

nsideration the viewpoint of all those concerned. We 

main open and available to receive input from the public 

d parties who may have a perspective they wish to voice 

how Pennsylvania's adoption laws should be changed. 

In addition, as always, we stand ready and 

lling to assist the Legislature in any way regarding 

option issues and legislative concerns surrounding 

nnsylvania adoption laws. We appreciate the 

gislature's attention to these important issues in the 

rm of public hearings. 

And I thank you for the opportunity to testify 

garding the work of the advisory committee. Thank you. 

CHAIRPERSON DALLY: Thank you, Ms. Newman. 

ifore we start with questions, I'd like to recognize 

ett — Representative Brett Feese from Lycoming County 

o's also joined us. Questions for Ms. Newman? Starting 

. my left, Representative Birmelin. 

REPRESENTATIVE BIRMELIN: Just a couple quick 

estions. The resolution attached to your testimony, Ms. 
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14 
wman, indicates that the Senate Resolution was introduced 

October 1995. I'm not sure if you had it in here or 

t. Is that when you were created? 

MS. MARCUS NEWMAN: We were — we were 

tually established by that resolution. It took some time 

r the task force members to be appointed. 

REPRESENTATIVE BIRMELIN: And how long have 

u actually been working on this? 

MS. MARCUS NEWMAN: Since 1998 we actually 

arted meeting as an advisory committee. 

REPRESENTATIVE BIRMELIN: When in 1998? 

MS. MARCUS NEWMAN: January. 

REPRESENTATIVE BIRMELIN: January? 

MS. MARCUS NEWMAN: Uh-huh. 

REPRESENTATIVE BIRMELIN: So you've been at it 

r about a year? 

MS. MARCUS NEWMAN: About a year. 

REPRESENTATIVE BIRMELIN: One other question. 

u may have been here for the opening statement that was 

ad on behalf of Chairman Blaum. 

MS. MARCUS NEWMAN: Yeah. 

REPRESENTATIVE BIRMELIN: And I looked through 

e of his bills, and I couldn't find the answer to it. 

d I apologize. I don't know if it's here or somewhere 

se. But maybe a quick question from you and a quick 
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15 
swer resolves it. 

What is the current time period in which a 

rson who gives up a child has the right to negate that 

reement from the time they give up a child for adoption? 

other states, there's, you know, 30 days, 60 days. 

at's Pennsylvania's time frame? 

MS. MARCUS NEWMAN: Well, currently there is 

t an exact day period. It's based upon when certain 

oceedings are finished. And that would actually be 

en — I believe when the termination is granted so — 

REPRESENTATIVE BIRMELIN: Can you give me a 

llpark figure then as to how long it would normally take 

Pennsylvania? What's the quickest that you've seen it? 

MS. MARCUS NEWMAN: Well, theoretically, 

eoretically, it could take, you know, any — it could 

ke just a matter of days. But oftentimes — 

REPRESENTATIVE BIRMELIN: In reality, it 

esn't? 

MS. MARCUS NEWMAN: No. Oftentimes, it 

kes — it could take 30, 60 days. I mean, that's 

mething that we're actually examining now and we're 

oking at in light of other states. The problem is, is 

at there — when you deal with an issue such as 

irmination and revocation of consent, there are a lot of 

lunterbalancing factors that have to be considered in 
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16 
rms of what time period they're going to give the birth 

ther to actually revoke her consent. 

Thirty days was suggested by the Legislative 

dget and Finance Committee. But currently under 

nnsylvania's law, because they don't set an exact day 

riod, it is open-ended. And that's something we're 

dressing. 

REPRESENTATIVE BIRMELIN: Thank you. And one 

st question. The adoption laws that apply in 

nnsylvania are only to those people who actually make the 

option binding in that state; is that correct? In other 

rds, Pennsylvanians, if you go to another state, you have 

abide by the other state's law. 

But if you live in Pennsylvania and adopt in 

nnsylvania or people that don't live in Pennsylvania and 

me into Pennsylvania to adopt are guided under the 

vernance of Pennsylvania law; is that correct? 

MS. MARCUS NEWMAN: That's correct. If the 

[option occurs in Pennsylvania and they're residents of 

nnsylvania, you'd be subject to Pennsylvania law. But 

so, it depends on the state that you're dealing with. A 

it of the states, depending on what the aspect of the 

[option is, they will accept as valid whatever the other 

ate accepts as valid. 

So in other words, if we have a consent to an 
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17 
option that is signed here, if it's valid in this state, 

pending on what other state you go to, they would accept 

as valid if it's valid here. 

REPRESENTATIVE BIRMELIN: And is the bottom 

ne here in this geographical designation the location of 

e child to be adopted? Is that the determining factor of 

at state the adoption occurs in? 

MS. MARCUS NEWMAN: No. You mean where the 

ild is born? It depends. 

REPRESENTATIVE BIRMELIN: No, where the child 

sides. 

MS. MARCUS NEWMAN: Yeah. It would be — it 

uld be where the child — well, actually, to tell you the 

uth, that's a matter of, you know, legislative language, 

mean, that we're still looking at. But it would 

sically be where the adoptive parents — are you talking 

garding the revocation of consent or — 

REPRESENTATIVE BIRMELIN: Well, primarily, 

ss. But — 

MS. MARCUS NEWMAN: I mean, the revocation of 

msent would apply where it was signed. 

REPRESENTATIVE BIRMELIN: I can imagine that 

L unwed mother who wishes to give up her child for 

[option is contacted by somebody out of state, three 

ates away and they meet halfway and they say, Here, you 
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18 
n adopt my daughter or my son in this state in between 

• 

And neither one is from the state in which it 

curs. And yet the child was a resident of state A, and 

e adoptees are — or the adoptive parents are from, you 

ow, state B and remain in state C. I mean, this could 

come very confusing. And I can tell by the answer that 

ve already gotten. And I'm confused. 

But I'm just trying to get a handle on 

ere — whose law governs in these aspects of adoption. 

it the law — is it the child's state residence that 

termines this or — 

MS. MARCUS NEWMAN: Well, it depends on the 

pect. And actually, there's an entire piece of 

terstate legislation that's federally based called the 

terstate Compact on Placement of Children, or ICPC, that 

verns a lot of these issues. 

So when children are actually moved over state 

undaries, there's a whole filing process that takes 

ace. And there's all kinds of hierarchical, you know, 

erarchical laws of which state would apply depending on 

at the state situation is because you can have any number 

: combinations of issues. 

And also, it depends on which particular 

pect of the adoption is taking place as well. So there's 
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19 
real clear-cut answer, like if the adoptive parents live 

Pennsylvania, Pennsylvania law is going to apply because 

depends on what aspects of the act you're looking at. 

also depends on where they're coining from and at what 

int in the adoption. 

REPRESENTATIVE BIRMELIN: So any legislation 

at we pass sounds to me like it's only going to apply 

en Pennsylvanians adopt Pennsylvania — 

MS. MARCUS NEWMAN: No, that's not true. It 

uld apply when a child from out of state is brought into 

nnsylvania as well. It would also apply when a birth 

ther takes certain actions in this state. For example, 

she were to sign a consent to an adoption here and then 

e baby were to be removed from this state, that 

vocation would still apply. 

So it would apply to various aspects of it. 

will continue to apply often even after the child is 

moved from the state. 

REPRESENTATIVE BIRMELIN: Thank you for your 

swers. 

CHAIRPERSON DALLY: Just one quick question on 

e issue of consent. Is that something your task force is 

oking at? 

MS. MARCUS NEWMAN: Absolutely. 

CHAIRPERSON DALLY: So there — you feel that 
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20 
ere should be a definitive time line or a time frame for 

at as opposed to based upon the entry of the — of the 

cree by the court? 

MS. MARCUS NEWMAN: Well, I mean, I can't tell 

u where we've come out on it right now. But certainly, 

e fact that it's open-ended at this point is something 

at's been discussed at length in our meetings, both in 

e subcommittee meetings and in the advisory committee 

etings. 

And I can tell you that it is being absolutely 

dressed in all of our discussions. So it's something 

•ve really taken very seriously. 

CHAIRPERSON DALLY: Okay. Good. Thank you. 

MS. MARCUS NEWMAN: Thank you. 

CHAIRPERSON DALLY: Next on our agenda, Craig 

d Melanie Kollar. Did I pronounce that correctly, or is 

Kollar? 

MRS. KOLLAR: It's Kollar. 

CHAIRPERSON DALLY: Kollar. Okay. Craig and 

lanie Kollar. You can proceed. 

MRS. KOLLAR: Good afternoon. My name is 

slanie Kollar. And first, I'll be reading testimony for a 

>uple who wishes to remain anonymous at this time. This 

by the parents of J.L. 

"We want to thank you for the opportunity to 
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21 
esent our story. There are aspects of our son's history 

feel strongly he should hear only from us when he is 

ady. Still we felt it important for you to hear how 

nnsylvania's adoption laws have impacted our family. 

Our story began ten months ago with the birth 

our son J.L. While Pennsylvania law does not yet 

cognize him as our son legally, in every meaningful sense 

the word, he is. We have loved him, comforted him, and 

rtured him since we brought him home from the hospital at 

o days old. 

J.L.'s birth mother didn't feel she could 

[equately care for this, her second child, and made the 

iving decision to place him for adoption. She contacted 

x adoption agency and, upon his birth and within 24 

>urs, selected us to become his parents. 

We should note that to this day, she remains 

onmitted to her decision and feels strongly that J.L. 

slongs with us. We then located J.L.'s birth father who 

is serving time at a county prison. This was the second 

did he fathered with the birth mother. 

We were told he showed little interest in the 

.rst child. So we had reason to believe he'd have no 

iterest in parenting J.L. Unfortunately, we were proven 

:ong. He was surprised and angry upon learning of the 

.rth mother's decision, and he refused to consent to the 

TROUTMAN REPORTING SERVICE 
(570) 622-6850 



22 

option. 

It's important to note, however, that he did 

t indicate he was willing to parent this child himself. 

fact, he never asked to visit or even see a picture of 

L. He never inquired about his well-being, and he never 

fered to send any type of support. 

Everyone involved, including the birth mother, 

cial workers and lawyer, believed that this was a case of 

unded pride; that the birth father wasn't so much 

terested in raising a son as making a statement that he 

s in control and would not be told what to do. 

Unfortunately, because the birth father did 

t agree to voluntarily terminate his rights, we were 

reed to wait the mandatory four months before our lawyer 

uld proceed to have his rights terminated involuntarily. 

ur days is a long time when you're talking about bonding 

th a child, never mind four months. 

But we held on, and our lawyer filed the 

pers for the termination hearing with the necessary legal 

stification to do so. Of course, the court system moves 

credibly slowly; and it would be another two months 

fore a hearing date could be scheduled. 

At this point, J.L. was six months old. Six 

nths is an eternity. Up until the date of the hearing, 

i truly believed that the birth father would ultimately 
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ree to forfeit his rights. After all, how could he be 

terested in being a parent when it didn't occur to him to 

en inquire about his son? 

He was fresh out of prison with no permanent 

me, no steady job, and no apparent family support system. 

fortunately, we were proven wrong again. The birth 

ther attended the hearing and again refused to consent to 

e adoption. The judge appointed him a lawyer and 

heduled another hearing to review the case. 

This hearing could not be scheduled until 

ree months later in early November when J.L. would be 

ne months old. We were then told that the judge would 

t make an immediate decision at the end of the hearing 

d that it would be at least another month until our son's 

te was determined. 

Based on the birth father's history and the 

rticular circumstances of this case, we were hopeful that 

e judge would agree that J.L.'s best interests would be 

rved by remaining with us, the only parents he knows. 

t we understood there are no guarantees. 

Fortunately, our story has a happy ending. 

Ifway through the November hearing, the birth father 

[reed to voluntarily relinquish his parental rights. We 

i not know the exact reason why. We do know that we'll 

ver feel such a wave of relief come over us again. 
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Now that both parental rights have been 

rminated, we are awaiting a court date to finalize J.L.'s 

option. Again, the courts move slowly; and it's likely 

at J.L. will be a year old before he is made legally our 

n. The process of adopting a child in Pennsylvania is 

credibly stressful. 

The agony of waiting and wondering is 

mething you can't imagine. We knew we loved J.L. with 

1 of our hearts and soul and would fight to the end to 

main his parents. Yet we also know we can never again 

opt a child in this state under the current system. 

We just don't have the emotional stamina to go 

rough this process again. Every adoptive parent knows 

ere are risks involved in domestic adoptions, but 

nnsylvania law asks too much of us and the children we 

ve. We believe that a birth father has the right to be 

tified of the birth of his child and should be given a 

asonable amount of time to decide what to do with that 

formation. 

But four months plus the time it takes to 

hedule a hearing is an unreasonable amount of time for 

eryone involved. And certainly, 10-plus months before a 

ild's future is ultimately decided is simply cruel. It * s 

t fair to the adoptive parents who are expected to remain 

emotional limbo. 
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It's not fair to the birth mother who made the 

cision in the best interest of her child and now wants to 

ve on. And most importantly, it's not fair to the child 

o's forming attachments to the adoptive parents with 

ery passing day. 

We appeal to your good sense and ask you to 

ange the law so that waiting times are shortened and 

rth fathers are forced to deal with their 

sponsibilities in a timely manner. Thank you." 

CHAIRPERSON DALLY: Mr. Kollar, you may 

oceed. 

MR. KOLLAR: My name is Craig Kollar. And 

ong with my wife Melanie, we would like to thank 

mmittee members for allowing us today to testify in 

pport of adoption reform. After several years of 

fertility, we decided to devote our love and priorities 

> a less fortunate child by way of adoption. 

Through our family physician, we met a 

-year-old unwed woman approximately three months into her 

fth pregnancy and forged a relationship that allowed us 

ie future privilege of raising her child. The birth 

ither explained that the biological father would not 

knowledge his role in the pregnancy and was disinterested 

i maintaining a relationship with her. 

With little means and no supportive spouse, 
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e rationalized that it would be in the baby's best 

terest to be adopted by a more capable couple. On 

nuary 1 of this year, our birth mother bore a beautiful 

rl we named Allison. We could not have asked for a 

tter way to start the new year. 

The following day, we took Allison home to her 

modeled room and placed her in the crib that lay empty 

r over a year. The bonding was immediate. The 

erwhelming joy of the day overshadowed any previous 

xieties we had about losing Allison to her biological 

rents. 

However, the days past; and we became 

creasingly unsettled as the birth mother missed several 

pointments to sign the consent. When our attorney 

ntioned this concern to the birth mother, she 

ecifically telephoned us to ease our minds. 

She explained that it was a busy period in her 

fe, but was nonetheless resolved to completing the 

[option. Her commitment seemed genuine when finally she 

gned the consent 29 days after placing Allison in our 

me. Once again, we were on an emotional high. 

Since we could not terminate the birth 

rents' parental rights without the birth father's 

msent, we settled back and resumed our life with Allison 

tile our attorney attempted to locate the birth father. 
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ce signed, we would have to wait 30 days to request a 

urt date to terminate parental rights. 

Nearly two months after the birth mother 

gned the consent, we received a call from our attorney. 

ter steadfastly reassuring us she would not do so, the 

rth mother changed her mind. What had seemed to be the 

rfect arrangement rapidly degenerated into a nightmare. 

In retrospect, I cannot even recall 

nsidering the option of returning Allison. This was our 

ughter, and we would fight for her at all costs. Since 

e adoption was to have occurred in York County, we 

mediately hired local counsel in Franklin County. 

As opposed to terminating rights 

voluntarily, our new attorney recommended we pursue court 

dered temporary custody since it had not been more than 

x months without birth parent contact. We agreed, and a 

urt date was set exactly one week later. 

To say that the next several days were an 

lotional burden would be a serious understatement. 

cause we did not have court ordered custody, either 

rent — either birth parent was within their legal rights 

• simply come to our home and take Allison from our arms 

spite our being the only parents she knew. That fear 

msumed our every conscious minute. 

Just as a fugitive might constantly glance 
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er both shoulders, so did we when leaving our home. 

ter filing the temporary custody paperwork with the 

urt, we expected to hear from the birth mother. And once 

ainf our hopes were raised when that did not immediately 

cur. 

However, literally five minutes before close 

business on the eve of the temporary custody hearing, an 

torney representing the birth mother phoned to indicate 

at neither party would be attending the hearing but would 

netheless fight the permanent custody petition. 

Although pleased our motion went uncontested, 

could not think of a single legitimate excuse for the 

rth mother's behavior. Consequently, the judge awarded 

temporary custody as expected. As part of the 

rangement, we permitted the birth mother weekly 

pervised visitation through the Salvation Army. 

Although these visits were available 

mediately, it took more than a month for her to make 

rangements. Since that time, however, the program has 

en cancelled due to the birth mother's lack of interest 

d sporadic attendance. Sadly, this does not bolster our 

se. 

History reveals that adoptive parents have 

ttle chance at involuntarily terminating birth parent 

ghts until a full six months of no contact. Either birth 
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rent could disappear for five and a half months, then 

ddenly reappear and resume their case right where it left 

f. 

Let us just say this is not a case of two 

pable loving families quarreling over an infant. 

though a difficult decision, we would certainly return 

lison to her natural parents if we felt it best for her 

ture. But sadly, that is not the case. 

After the birth mother revoked her consent, we 

re shocked to learn that her parental rights were 

rminated to her first two children due to physical abuse 

id neglect. Furthermore, she periodically abandons her 

imaining children with whomever simply because she has no 

>od or shelter. 

She has consistently exhibited behavior that 

istricts her from maintaining a job and ultimately 

oviding for her children. You may be asking yourself 

tout the birth father, and we doubt Allison will ever know 

.m. Several possible fathers were named but none proven 

inclusively. An unknown birth father is, at best, a 

.ecarious circumstance for us. The natural father could 

iddenly emerge and claim ignorance in the whole matter, 

tus allowing him a real chance at keeping Allison. 

Pennsylvania is long overdo in their efforts 

> reform adoption law. And we would personally favor 
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mprehensive changes to the entire outdated statute. 

wever, for the short term, several key changes would 

ford impartiality to all parties in the adoption triad 

d minimize the risk of a disruption. 

First, consents to adoption should be 

revocable once signed by the birth parents. We are not 

ying that consent must be signed after 72 hours; but once 

gned, it would be irrevocable and certainly not revocable 

st 10 days. There must be a swift and decisive period 

ich protects the children from having their balance and 

ability disrupted after months or even years of bonding 

L the homes of their adoptive parents. 

Second, and because this is probably the most 

iportant decision ever made by a person, adoption-related 

•unseling must be offered to potential birth parents prior 

» placement. As evidenced by the reasons our birth mother 

ive for her sudden change of heart, we believe 

[option-related counseling might have prevented this 

agedy. 

Lastly, we believe putative fathers are 

diged to take responsibility for their actions. Any man 

to sleeps with a woman surely understands the potential 

^sequences. A putative father who does not provide 

ibstantial care and support of a child resulting from his 

:tions should lose his right to contest adoption 
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oceedings. 

There are those who believe that comprehensive 

form is just around the corner. However, we all know 

at the checks and balances of our Legislature inherently 

eclude the expeditious passing of such broad changes. 

at is why I emphasize that you make a serious and 

ncerted effort to move these bills, so that other 

milies will not have to experience the emotional torment 

family endures daily, a torment resulting from the 

ightening prospect that our daughter will be one year old 

a few short weeks with her future so far from certain. 

Comprehensive reform to current adoption law 

necessary. However, the fundamental changes I mentioned 

ove would have an immediate and positive impact. And to 

nore it would effectively abandon Pennsylvania's 

rspective adopted children. Thank you. 

I would just like to say outside of my written 

•mments that we only need to look at our borders. And 

ne mentioned that at the start here, that this is not a 

ivelty; that these things do work in other states. And I 

link Representative Birmelin had some questions earlier 

tout the minimum time adoption could happen in the state. 

It's actually about 43 days. Birth parents 

in't sign until three days after the birth. Then you need 

minimum of 30 days to request a court date before the 
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ghts can be terminated, and then there's a 10-day 

tification to the birth parents. 

So really, the minimum time would be 43 days. 

r experience is that we found that the average adoption 

about eight months. 

CHAIRPERSON DALLY: Thank you, Mr. and Mrs. 

liar. Any questions? 

(No response.) 

CHAIRPERSON DALLY: Thank you very much. Next 

. our agenda, Richard and Maria Joel. Are they in the 

om? No. The next witness is Melanie Miller. Her 

sstimony will be read into the record by Dave Bloomer. 

MR. BLOOMER: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. "Hi. 

' name is Melanie Miller. My husband Mike and I live in 

>rk Haven, York County. Last November, we heard through 

tual friends of a baby who was to be born in April of 

lis year. We were very excited because after many years 

I infertility trials and tribulations, we were in the 

.dst of trying to decide whether to adopt or not. 

My husband has an adopted daughter from a 

evious marriage. The adoption was successful; although, 

: took a year and a half to finalize. Needless to say, my 

isband was very reluctant to go through the adoption 

rocess again after experiencing this very long so-called 

: risk period. 
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Even so, we put the risks aside and proceeded 

th the adoption process for this yet unborn baby that we 

ped would soon be our child. In February of this year, 

r attorney drew up a legal agreement stating our 

tentions to adopt a baby. 

Despite any anxieties we may have felt, we 

oceeded to make preparations for the baby just as any 

pectant couple would. Our dreams came true on May 2nd 

ten we received our beautiful 2-day-old baby girl whom we 

med Mikayla. The arranged adoption of Mikayla was 

osed, preventing us from knowing what transpired. 

But our dreams quickly vanished when she was 

iken from us after only two weeks. What I do know is that 

e birth parents were unwed, in college, unemployed, and 

ie birth mother changed her mind. That was the beginning 

: a nightmare that continues to affect not only myself and 

' husband but also our families, friends, and especially 

' 13-year-old stepdaughter. 

Losing Mikayla was the most devastating 

:perience of our lives even after only two weeks. Placing 

baby for adoption has to be one of the most difficult 

icisions one would have to make. I have the utmost 

ispect for birth parents that make that decision. But for 

ie child's sake, once the decision is made, it should be 

.early defined and final. 
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An adopted child deserves to know who his or 

r parents will be without the chance of his or her life 

ing interrupted weeks, months, or years later. Adoption 

a decision that affects many people and a decision that 

ould not be taken lightly. Clearly stated consents 

gned after 72 hours should be irrevocable or a revocation 

riod certainly limited to no more than 10 days. 

Had our birth parents been offered 

option-related counseling, our adoption may have been 

fferent. An adoption agency could have provided these 

rvices, and we would not have felt so helpless and 

lnerable. Adoption counseling may have helped the birth 

ther deal with the loss that she felt, with her 

lnerability, and with the reasons she chose to place her 

by for adoption. That could have made the difference in 

r situation. 

This experience has had a huge impact on us. 

words can describe the feeling I had when I first held 

kayla in my arms. We were so looking forward to 

rturing her, caring for her, providing for her, raising 

r, teaching her, and above all, loving her. 

Mikayla was such a precious gift to us, so 

re and innocent. Even though she was with us for only a 

ort time, she took a big chunk of my heart with her when 

e had to go. It was a heart wrenching feeling, in some 
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ys like a death* 

We were forced to go through the grieving 

ocess that hurts to this day and probably will for a 

ng, long time. In the meantime, with a whole nursery 

11 of baby things, we are very hesitant about pursuing 

other adoption. We don't know if we will choose to risk 

other disruption with the present status of the 

nnsylvania Adoption Law. 

We ask that you consider the proposed adoption 

form legislation so that other families and children may 

nefit from the many positive aspects of adoption." 

CHAIRPERSON DALLY: Thank you, David. Mrs. 

Her, do you have any other statements you wish to make? 

MRS. MILLER: No. 

CHAIRPERSON DALLY: Any questions for — 

MRS. MILLER: That kind of says it all. Thank 

>u, David, for reading that. 

CHAIRPERSON DALLY: Questions for Mrs. Miller? 

(No response.) 

CHAIRPERSON DALLY: Thank you very much. 

MRS. MILLER: Thank you. 

CHAIRPERSON DALLY: Rod and Ginny Smith, are 

ley present? Okay. How about Terri Weber? Come forward, 

ease. 

MRS. WEBER: Good afternoon. Thank you for 
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king me to be here today to be a part of a very special 

ocess in reforming adoption law here in the State of 

nnsylvania. As I mentioned before, my name is Terri 

ber. I'm from Dauphin County. My husband Lee and I are 

e proud parents of two beautiful boys. One son came to 

through adoption and the other through birth. 

Consequently, this subject of adoption is a 

bject very close to my heart. And I did not want to miss 

e opportunity to express my views here today. My husband 

d I began our adoption journey over five years ago. Our 

arch had a very happy ending when our son Todd was placed 

our care. 

As a matter of fact, it was three years ago 

is week. His very presence in our lives is a tribute to 

e love and maturity of his birth parents. They placed 

eir complete trust in us when they chose us to be his 

optive parents. We count our blessings every day and 

tank God for that fateful day in December of 1996 that 

options From the Heart called to tell us we were finally 

ing to be parents. 

You cannot begin to imagine the joy we felt to 

LOW that our arms and hearts would soon be full. In many 

ys, it was like winning the lottery. That may sound 

range. But you see, we were one of the rarest and 

ickiest of adoptive couples. 
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Our baby was to be placed for adoption in New 

rsey. In spite of the thought of spending a week or more 

New Jersey waiting for Interstate Compact to complete 

rangements before we could go home, we were more than 

lling to go. We knew that beyond any doubt that once we 

t in our car to return to Pennsylvania, we would be 

rents of this child forever. 

Most people like yourselves probably wonder 

y we were so happy to go to New Jersey when we could 

opt right here in Pennsylvania. Peace of mind, a more 

reamlined legal process, and less time spent in court are 

st a few reasons. Adoption in New Jersey is very 

fferent from Pennsylvania in several key areas: 

Surrender of parental rights and consent to 

opt can be signed after 72 hours following the child's 

.rth and are irrevocable; no court hearing is held to 

xminate parental rights; there is no requirement to give 

rth parents 10 days notice of a hearing; only 

ganizations approved by the Department of Human Services 

in assist in the placement of a child. 

In New Jersey, birth parents may sign the 

pers to surrender parental rights and consent to adopt 

ter 72 hours have elapsed from the time of birth. 

though that same time period is also available in 

mnsylvania, the legal process behind them is very 
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fferent. 

Once those papers are signed in New Jersey, 

e birth parents cannot come back later to revoke them and 

claim the child. The adoption agency assumes custody of 

e child and grants the adoptive parents temporary custody 

til the finalization hearing is held after six months 

ve elapsed following the child's birth. No hearing is 

cessary to terminate parental rights. 

In Pennsylvania, the birth parents can sign 

e papers to terminate parental rights and come back at 

y time prior to the termination of parental rights 

aring or the finalization of the adoption, whichever 

curs sooner, and they may reclaim the child. 

Also, to terminate parental rights, a hearing 

y not be held sooner than 30 days following the birth of 

e child; and another 10 days notice must be given to the 

rth parents before a hearing can be held. This places a 

aid's life in limbo for a period of at least six weeks 

d may take even longer if the courts are backed up with 

her cases. 

A child's earliest weeks are the most critical 

me in a child's life. They need to have the same 

iportunity as any birth child to bond with those who are 

ring for them and will continue to do so for the rest of 

leir lives. An expedient process needs to be in place to 
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solve the child's future. 

Therefore, I ask you to consider an 

revocable termination of parental rights with no court 

aring. If you feel this is not in the best interest of 

e child or the birth parents, then I ask that you place a 

ximum of one week on the time period allowed to revoke 

nsent but still dispose of the requirement of a court 

aring to terminate parental rights. 

I also have very strong feelings regarding the 

>le of a facilitator in the adoption process. In New 

rsey, only organizations approved by the Department of 

man Services can assist in placement. In Pennsylvania, 

ly organization may receive and provide for care of 

lildren supervised by the Department of Public Welfare. 

These organizations are also allowed to file 

th the courts for adoption, provided the proper 

[formation is provided regarding fees paid and extensive 

[formation about the child. Although I applaud the role 

: facilitators in bringing a unique approach to adoption, 

feel strongly they should be licensed by the Commonwealth 

: Pennsylvania just as any adoption agency would be and, 

terefore, bound by the same rules regarding adoption 

rocedures. 

In addition, they should not be providing the 

replacement counseling to birth parents unless they are 
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censed by the Commonwealth and are certified in the area 

adoption counseling. I personally feel the counseling 

son's birth parents received was critical to the 

sitive outcome of our case. 

In fact, I feel so strongly about it, I would 

ke to see an extension to the proposed legislation to 

ke sure counseling is available to all birth parents 

nsidering adoption placement for their child. This is 

e most critical decision these people will ever make in 

eir lives; and if the irrevocable clause is invoked, it 

also the most binding decision they will ever make. 

To ensure they are well-informed and 

luntarily making this decision, I feel a minimum number 

counseling sessions should be available to them. 

[fortunately, I am not qualified to set that minimum. But 

common consensus from licensed social workers experienced 

L adoption should yield a reasonable guideline. 

Thank you for taking the time to listen to our 

ory. I ask that you strongly consider my proposal for 

[option reform in Pennsylvania. It would make our joy 

en greater to know that some day people right here in 

mnsylvania can experience the same smooth adoption 

ocess we did in Hew Jersey. 

I will be waiting with great interest to hear 

ie outcome of this hearing. Thank you. 
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CHAIRPERSON DALLY: Thank you, Mrs. Weber. 

estions? Before we take questions, I'd like to recognize 

presentative Joseph Petrarca who just joined us from 

stmoreland County. Welcome. Representative Birmelin. 

REPRESENTATIVE BIRMELIN: Thank you, Mrs. 

ber. On the bottom of the first page of your testimony, 

u indicated that a finalization hearing was held six 

nths following the child's birth. During that 6-month 

riod, what occurred between you and the State of New 

rsey? 

Was there any follow-up on their part as to 

ivestigating your home and — 

MRS. WEBER: Yes, there are three follow-up 

.sits after the placement of the child prior to the 

taring. 

REPRESENTATIVE BIRMELIN: Is that at your 

:pense? 

MRS. WEBER: Yes. 

REPRESENTATIVE BIRMELIN: So you knew that 

dng into it that even though you were from another state, 

tat you would have to pay for that state's process to 

ivestigate your home and make sure that after six months 

tat you were in good housekeeping seal of approval, so to 

>eak? 

MRS. WEBER: And actually, those visits were 
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nducted by an adoption representative here in 

nnsylvania, maybe because of the fact that that 

rticular agency also had offices in New Jersey and 

nnsylvania. So our home counselor was the one that 

tually did the follow-up visits. 

REPRESENTATIVE BIRMELIN: Were they contracted 

ployees with — 

MRS. WEBER: No, not to my knowledge. 

REPRESENTATIVE BIRMELIN: And on what basis 

d New Jersey accept their report of the visits in your 

me? 

MRS. WEBER: In all honesty, I can't answer 

at. 

REPRESENTATIVE BIRMELIN: Thank you very much. 

CHAIRPERSON DALLY: Representative Manderino. 

REPRESENTATIVE MANDERINO: Thank you. I'm 

rry. I don't think I missed it in your testimony, but 

's kind of implied. Does New Jersey have mandatory 

iunseling for birth parents? 

MRS. WEBER: To my knowledge, they do not have 

.ndatory counseling. 

REPRESENTATIVE MANDERINO: You just know that 

•ur — the birth parents of your child went through it and 

. was helpful. But you — 

MRS. WEBER: Absolutely. 
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REPRESENTATIVE MANDERINO: You don't know 

ether it's mandated in their law? 

MRS. WEBER: The agency that we chose offers 

to all parents, and we were able to benefit from that 

perience. 

REPRESENTATIVE MANDERINO: Thank you. 

CHAIRPERSON DALLY: Thank you very much for 

ur testimony. Oh, I'm sorry. 

MS. MENDLOW: Yeah. I just wanted to thank 

iu for your very comprehensive testimony and for doing 

ch a good job comparing the laws in the two states and 

ur experiences. I did want to point out — and I don't 

LOW if this does the trick for you. 

But you mentioned your concern about making 

ire that preplacement counseling is available — should be 

ailable to all birth parents who are basically 

•ntemplating relinquishing their parental rights. And I 

d want to indicate that that is on page 7 of House Bill 

138 in lines 19 and 20 to try to open up that counseling 

md to provide more access to people so that even at the 

tint when they are contemplating the relinquishment of 

leir parental rights or contemplating the execution of 

>nsent, that they could access that fund if they are 

table to afford adoption counseling on their own. 

And the other issue, as far as New Jersey law, 
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understanding is that that counseling is something that 

required. And it comes as part and parcel of their 

gulation of the adoption agencies that counseling to both 

rents is a very integral part of that as opposed to my 

derstanding in Pennsylvania right now, adoption 

gulation does not require counseling to birth parents as 

universal kind of service that is provided. 

So we can't say that all licensed adoption 

encies in our state do have that service available to 

rth parents. Thank you. 

CHAIRPERSON DALLY: Thank you, Jane. Any 

rther questions for Mrs. Weber? 

(No response.) 

CHAIRPERSON DALLY: Thank you very much. Next 

tness on our agenda is Deborah Strunk from the 

snnsylvania Defense Fund. Is she present? Perhaps she'll 

! in later. Brad and Jane Bechtel or Cliff and Jennifer 

tltzman Tracey, are they present? 

(No response.) 

CHAIRPERSON DALLY: Marilyn Rich, Adoptions 

om the Heart. Oh, Wendy Matthews is here for — okay. 

Lank you. Come forward. Wendy Matthews from Adoptions 

:om the Heart. Welcome. You can proceed. 

MS. MATTHEWS: Thank you. Good afternoon. 

lank you for allowing me the opportunity to come before 
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u today to testify on the issue of adoptions in the 

mmonwealth. I would particularly like to thank 

presentative Kevin Blaum for introducing and sponsoring 

use Bills 1533 and 1838. 

I consented to testify today because I was 

ced with an unplanned pregnancy back in 1995 when I was 

years old. The process that followed really opened my 

es to how government regulations — regulates the 

[options and some of these shortcomings. I'm very 

rvous. I'm sorry. 

CHAIRPERSON DALLY: Just take your time. 

MS. MATTHEWS: I am not a lawyer, nor am I 

ill-versed in the provisions of Pennsylvania domestic 

lations law. What I can offer the Committee, however, is 

firsthand account on what I went through in 1995. For 

ieners, one point that I would really like to make clear, 

no time did I ever regret the decision to choose 

[option for my daughter Kylie. 

If the situation arose again today, I would 

ike the exact same decision. Through the open adoption 

ocess, I was able to choose a wonderful, loving, caring 

tuple to raise Kylie. They were with me through the whole 

ocess, which can be quite scary for a 20-year-old. And 

te relationship continues today. 

In fact, I will be seeing Kylie and her family 
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Friday to celebrate Christinas. I am saddened to say 

at a happy ending is not always the case. And I'm even 

rther saddened to say that I feel our laws have a lot to 

with that fact. In fact, I ended up executing my final 

option procedure in New Jersey because in my opinion, 

at state is much more progressive and fair. 

Pennsylvania requirements seem to be out of 

uch as well as unnecessarily complex. Easily, the most 

ustrating part about the adoption process in Pennsylvania 

the completely unnecessary reliance on the court system 

•r ending the termination of the birth mother's rights. 

In Pennsylvania, because of the 40 days that 

pse between the signing of the consent to adopt and the 

infirmation, the termination of the birth mother's rights 

in drag on for such a long time. The fact that the courts 

e always backed up only exacerbates the problem. 

Because of the system, it is actually possible 

>r a birth mother to reclaim the child from the adoptive 

irents even after the baby is in custody of that family. 

id I do not see how that can ever be productive or fair. 

L New Jersey, the courts are not compelled to be involved 

: all. 

It takes the consent order signed at a notary 

L the presence of an agent to set the process in motion. 

L short, during a time when a woman is making one of the 
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st important decisions in her life, New Jersey law helps 

se the anxiety, while Pennsylvania law in my opinion only 

ids to that anxiety. 

There's no question in my mind that the most 

itical part of my pregnancy was the fact that I had 

mderful counseling from Adoptions From the Heart in 

rrisburg. If there is any part of my testimony today 

at I cannot say strongly enough, it is that I think every 

ngle potential mother should have access to counseling 

om day one. 

It should be offered. And the State should 

s — should do everything in its power, including 

immitting financial resources, to ensuring that all 

>thers who want it receive it. Adoptions From the Heart 

s there for me through my entire pregnancy, helping me to 

ay healthy in body and mind. 

I would like to make another point, however, 

tout the place I feel Pennsylvania could do more to 

otect mothers who choose adoption. When I first made the 

loice of adoption, I was confused and scared. And the 

rst agency I contacted was not very helpful in that 

ispect. 

I understood that adoption is a business to 

>me folks, but the first agency I called took the business 

irt of the scenario a bit too far. I was inundated with 
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solicited phone calls from the beginning, badgering me to 

ke a decision and choose their agency. 

Thankfully, I found Adoptions From the Heart. 

t my experience has made me wonder what kind of oversight 

e Commonwealth of Pennsylvania has over these agencies. 

id is there a place a woman can go within our state 

vernment to file formal complaints against these types of 

scrupulous agencies? 

I do not know the answer to these questions. 

t I would respectfully suggest to this Committee that the 

sue be investigated and some guidelines be drafted. As I 

ntioned at the outset, I would choose adoption again in a 

lartbeat. And I have no regrets about doing so. 

My feelings on abortion are not pertinent to 

lis discussion. But I suppose any one of you here today 

n make an educated case as to where I stand on that 

sue, which brings me to my final point. If the 

immonwealth of Pennsylvania truly has an interest in 

tlping young mothers to pursue an avenue of adoption, then 

>gically we should be doing everything possible within the 

.w to ensure that option is easy and readily available. 

Simply put, in my opinion, it should never be 

isier to get an abortion than it is to choose adoption. I 

i deeply troubled to report to this Committee that I am 

>t entirely sure that it's the case in Pennsylvania today. 
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ere are scores of families in Pennsylvania waiting for 

althy babies. Our governor should know that fact as well 

anyone. 

But if our laws do not change in this state, 

are doing a great disservice to those families. More 

d more young, scared mothers-to-be will be choosing 

aces like New Jersey; and Pennsylvanians will be left out 

the cold. Or even more tragically, they will decide 

at adoption in Pennsylvania is just not worth the hassle 

d make other choices about their pregnancy. 

Pennsylvania likes to proclaim itself as a 

tionwide leader on a great many issues. I sincerely hope 

at a conscious effort is made to make adoptions one of 

ose issues. The passage of Representative Blaum's bill 

>uld be a very good start. 

Once again, thank you for allowing me to 

istify here today. And I am available for any questions. 

CHAIRPERSON DALLY: Thank you, Ms. Matthews, 

>r your most courageous and thoughtful testimony. Do we 

ive any questions for Ms. Matthews? 

(No response.) 

CHAIRPERSON DALLY: Seeing none, I'd like to 

tank you very much. Before we go on to the next witness, 

d like to recognize Representative Chris Wogan from 

tiladelphia County who's joined us, Representative Don 
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lko from Allegheny County, and Representative Peter Daley 

om Fayette County. 

And since we're running a little ahead of 

hedule, we're going to take a brief 10-minute recess to 

low time for some other witnesses to get here. And we'll 

nish up the hearing at that point. 

(A brief recess was taken.) 

CHAIRPERSON DALLY: All right. We're going to 

convene the hearing. And I'd like to call back Wendy 

.tthews, if she could come forward, and Adoptions From the 

art folks. And Wendy is joined by Marilyn Rich. I 

Lderstand you ladies have some additional comments you'd 

.ke to make to the Committee. 

MS. RICH: Just a couple points of what I see 

dly. Currently, I'm working with a birth mother who was 

iped in March or April. And in Pennsylvania, the way the 

sgulations state now, because it was a date rape situation 

id she's aware of the identity of this person, she would 

ted to name him. And he would have rights, and his rights 

>uld be terminated along with hers. 

Because of that complication, she has decided 

> select a family from the state of New Jersey and do New 

srsey surrenders. And in that case, she needs to simply 

.gn a form that states why it is that she can't name the 

.rth father. This would also be true in cases of domestic 
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•use. 

If a birth mother was involved where she felt 

was not a safe environment in which to raise a child, 

en if the birth father was an abuser, he would still be 

Lined and still be notified and still have rights. So 

lose are two key things I don't think a lot of people are 

rare of involving rape and domestic abuse. 

CHAIRPERSON DALLY: So are you saying that 

le — that the law is different in New Jersey? 

MS. RICH: That's correct. 

CHAIRPERSON DALLY: And I think this question 

is asked earlier. But as far as choice of laws — and I 

Less the Federal Uniform Law addresses this — but in a 

.tuation like that where you have the parents or the birth 

>ther a resident of Pennsylvania, what law controls in 

tat instance? 

MS. RICH: If she chose a family from another 

:ate, she could follow the laws in that state. 

CHAIRPERSON DALLY: So it's where the adoptive 

irents reside then? 

MS. RICH: That's correct. She could 

srminate in Pennsylvania. But knowing what she's facing, 

le elected to leave Pennsylvania and go to a state that 

ts more friendly. 

CHAIRPERSON DALLY: Oh, so she established 
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micile in New Jersey then? 

MS. RICH: No. She lives in Pennsylvania, the 

rth mother I'm speaking of. But she selected a family 

0 resides in New Jersey. 

CHAIRPERSON DALLY: All right. So then where 

e adoptive parents reside, that's the controlling law? 

MS. RICH: Either-or. 

CHAIRPERSON DALLY: Either-or? 

MS. RICH: Either-or. The other point I'd 

ke to make is Maxine Chalker, our executive director, 

bmitted some factual information as to how she sees, one 

i particular, House Bill 1533, that Pennsylvania is truly 

1 at risk state for the life of the child. 

Another thing I don't think people are aware, 

I've talked a lot about different dates and times and when 

tuld a termination actually be final. It is never final, 

id that's something that needs to be stated. There's no 

:atute of limitations as to when a birth father can 

ipear, demand a blood test, and overturn a final adoption. 

For example, I could have a birth mother who 

imed Joe Smith as — a birth mother says Joe Smith is the 

.rth father. We terminate his rights. And seven years 

iter John Jones appears and says, I'm really the birth 

ither. And we do a blood test, and he really is the birth 

Lther. He has rights. 
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So whether the adoption was finalized or not, 

wouldn't matter. That needs to clearly be stated that 

is final at a particular point. 

CHAIRPERSON DALLY: And do you know how that's 

ndled in other states such as New Jersey? Do you know 

w New Jersey — 

MS. RICH: It's just stated that it's final 

id that it can't be — it's irrevocable. It cannot be 

erturned. 

CHAIRPERSON DALLY: Well, how would they deal 

th the issue of a birth father that comes forward after 

iars from the date of birth, do you know? 

MS. RICH: Well, in different states, they 

ve different explanations for that. A lot of it has to 

> with the responsibility of the birth father; that when 

! was involved in sexual activities with this person, he 

Lew that a pregnancy could result. And so the onus was on 

m. 

He was responsible to check back. If in fact 

.ne months later there is a baby that results from that 

id he did nothing to, you know, claim his responsibility, 

! loses. 

CHAIRPERSON DALLY: Okay. Very good. Any 

testions? Dave, do you have a question? 

MR. BLOOMER: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I hope 
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don't sound insensitive with this question. But I have a 

estion about what you dealt with with the person from New 

rsey who was accused of date rape. Does New Jersey law 

al with anything with the due process rights of the 

fendant? 

Like how far would it have to go that the 

tative father was either, like, convicted of rape or — I 

ow that you said that the woman went to New Jersey to 

cilitate a quicker adoption because she felt she was 

ped, date raped. 

If the putative father comes and says, I'm 

nocent of the charges, I didn't do it, I still believe I 

ve right — I mean, I thought I was consensual — 

MS. RICH: To my knowledge, there isn't 

ything in the law that would protect him in that case. 

ie signs an affidavit that explains, you know, how in fact 

ie pregnancy occurred and why it is that she can't name 

ie birth father. 

MR. BLOOMER: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 

CHAIRPERSON DALLY: Any other questions? And 

ie two letters from Maxine Chalker will be made part of 

te record. Thank you very much. 

MS. RICH: Thank you. 

CHAIRPERSON DALLY: Our next witness is Robin 

lith, Marion Adoption Services. Good afternoon. 
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MS. SMITH: Good afternoon. My name is Robin 

ith, and I'm from York County. On October 3rd, 1998, my 

sband Ron and I received a call from our adoption agency 

at a baby boy just born in Pennsylvania was available for 

to adopt. We were asked to meet the birth parents at 

eir relative's house, which was two hours away. 

The next day, we drove to the location. And 

on arriving at the door, the birth mother's mother met 

She told my husband and I that she was very supportive 

the adoption and, in fact, explained that her daughter 

uld not care for herself let alone anyone else and felt 

rongly that the best thing for the baby was to be placed 

. a loving and stable environment. 

The birth parents were in the bedroom and at 

rst refused to come out and see us. After waiting four 

urs in the living room without ever seeing them, they 

nally came out of the bedroom. The birth mother 

oceeded to tell us that she already had a 6-year-old boy 

o her mother was raising because she had no maternal 

stincts and she had no interest in being a mother. 

She liked my husband and I and wanted to place 

ie baby with us. The birth father also told my husband 

id I a little bit about himself, including the fact that 

! has a very bad temper and had to go through eight months 

counseling because of it. 
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He went on to say that he liked us, too, but 

suddenly had changed his mind and did not want to go 

rough with the adoption after all. My husband and I were 

vastated and returned home. The next day, the agency 

lied to tell us that the birth father again changed his 

nd and wanted us to come back to get the baby. 

He claimed that he had made up his mind to go 

rough with the placement because he realized he did not 

ve the maturity, the financial stability, or the patience 

i take care of a baby. He said spending one night with 

e baby was a sign that he could not handle being a 

rent. 

Ron and I believed him and decided to proceed 

th the adoption once again. On October 5th, we took our 

!W baby boy home and fell in love with him instantly. We 

Lined him Austin. I resigned from my place of employment 

mediately to stay home with him, and my husband took a 

iek off from work to help out. 

The house was filled with baby gifts and 

•nstant visitors as both of our families also fell in love 

.th Austin. Within just a few days of taking our son 

ime, we received word from the adoption agency that the 

.rth parents seemed to be doing everything possible to 

oid signing the consent to adopt. 

They refused to speak to anyone at the agency, 
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d we never knew from day-to-day what was going to happen. 

e stress was terrible on my husband and I, but we tried 

keep moving on with our lives. On November 3rd, the 

option agency left a message on our voice machine asking 

to call them. 

I did not want to call them because I feared 

at I was going to be told. The phone rang again, and it 

s my husband who was working in Maryland at the time. I 

ew from the sound of his voice that the news was not 

iod. He said the birth parents decided to take our baby 

ick. 

I couldn't believe this was happening. We had 

ovided a wonderful happy home for Austin, and now he was 

dng back to birth parents that clearly could not raise 

m in a healthy environment. We spoke to our attorney. 

id he explained that although we could try to fight to 

ep our son, we had absolutely no legal right to him under 

mnsylvania law. 

We were crushed. Ron and I, and especially 

istin, did not deserve the pain, frustration and confusion 

eated by the birth parents' decision. Since the birth 

irents requested we bring him back that same day, we put 

L his best outfit and drove to the adoption agency. 

As I handed him over to the agency director, 

istin kept staring at me as if he was wondering why I was 
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serting him. We never saw him again. It was like as if 

> had died. After a month of tremendous grieving, we 

alized that we could not go through this situation again. 

We knew that if we adopted in Pennsylvania, we 

tuld experience this nightmare again. After researching 

ie adoption laws of West Virginia, we discovered that when 

>th birth — we discovered that there, when both birth 

.rents sign the consent to terminate their rights after 72 

turs of the birth of their child, the consent is 

-revocable. 

Upon learning this, we decided that if we were 

dng to attempt another adoption, our agency would have to 

nd a child in West Virginia. Through a tremendous 

essing, we were able to adopt a baby boy in December. 

tree days after his birth, the birth parents immediately 

gned the consent relinquishing all rights to the child. 

The worst-case scenario would have been that 

iey changed their minds before the 3-day period and we 

tuld have given the baby back. But we would have only had 

ie baby for one day, which is 100 percent better than 30 

iys or several months. 

Our son is now one year old. He is a blessing 

id a complete joy in our lives. I agree with most of the 

sgislation introduced in House Bill 1838, with the 

:ception of the 30-day termination period. I feel that 
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is is entirely too long. 

When birth parents sign the consent to adopt 

eir child 72 hours after the birth, that consent should 

irrevocable, in my opinion. I know from personal 

perience that this works very, very well for all parties 

volved. As it stands now in Pennsylvania, a signed 

nsent does not terminate the birth parents' rights under 

e current adoption laws, leaving the birth parents every 

portunity to take their child back. 

I know from personal experience that this 

rks very well. It is not fair to the children placed in 

ese situations to allow them to begin the bonding process 

th the only parents they know at that point only to have 

eir world disrupted by a decision often made with serious 

msideration — without serious consideration of the 

aid's welfare. 

There needs to be a definite line of finality 

»r all parties involved, especially the children. As 

Loptive parents, we offer a permanent solution for 

dldren who deserve the balance and stability that their 

ological parents know they cannot provide. 

The day we handed our son back, we were 

(turning him to an environment that was at best unstable. 

tat is certainly not in a child's best interest. If a 

smporary solution is needed, the child should be placed in 
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ster care rather than using adoptive parents as 

by-sitters, which often happens. 

I feel this is only fair to all parties. I 

ow what it's like to lose a child. In summary, I would 

k that any new legislation consider two main areas. 

rst and most importantly, the law must concern itself 

•re with the well-being of the child involved as he or she 

i the one who truly pays the price in the end. 

Secondly, adoptive parents must be given more 

msideration in the adoption process so that we are not 

lnerable to such tremendous emotional and financial 

•uses. My husband and I would like to thank you for this 

iportunity to share our story with you and applaud you for 

icognizing the need for adoption law reform. Thank you. 

CHAIRPERSON DALLY: Thank you, Mrs. Smith. 

y questions from the Committee? Jane. 

MS. MENDLOW: Thank you very much. Ron and 

•bin, your testimony was very helpful. I do have a 

Lestion maybe you could help with, and that is in respect 

i the baby. When Austin — when Austin was placed, you 

ght say, in your home, from this testimony, it's my 

iderstanding that you were working with an adoption 

fency. 

And then you say that the adoption agency 

>rked with birth parents, worked with you. You were able 
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meet each other, and kind of an agreement was made that 

u would take the child home. Do you know if the birth 

rents signed anything in terms of any forms because what 

m confused about is it sounds like they didn't actually 

gn any relinquishment papers to the agency or — and they 

dn't sign any consents because the agency was saying they 

re having a hard time getting them to sign a consent? 

So do you know exactly, you know, what 

ppened here? And I guess what I'm concerned about is 

encies taking a role, kind of placing children but 

tually not having received any kind of formal commitment, 

ich then the court could say, wait, you know, they did 

•t have any duress, there was no fraud, they understood 

.at they were doing, they signed these papers, and et 

itera. So I'm trying to better understand what did 

iey — 

MRS. SMITH: Yeah, I understand. 

MS. MENDLOW: What papers were signed? 

MRS. SMITH: Yeah. The way we understand, 

iey didn't sign anything. They — when the agency went up 

» where they lived to have them sign the 72-hour consent 

»rm, they took off. And they — but they didn't say that 

iey wanted the child back. 

They just kept avoiding phone calls. And we 

:re — we would have given the baby back, you know, if 
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ey would have asked. We would have had to. But there 

s — they just — for a whole month, they ignored calls. 

e agency would go, knock on their door, and they wouldn't 

gn anything or talk to them. 

MS. MENDLOW: Because the Hollars' attorney 

d advised them — earlier testimony indicated that their 

tuation, their attorney advised them to go to court to 

t a custody order from the court so that there would 

— if the best interest of the child as an issue here is 

> — because somebody had custody. You did. 

It didn't sound like the agency, and it didn't 

und like the birth parents. So I would just be 

terested as we work through this issue to find out a 

ttle bit more about how that whole system worked. Thank 

>u. 

CHAIRPERSON DALLY: Representative Manderino. 

REPRESENTATIVE MANDERINO: Thank you. Thank 

iu for your testimony. This is really a follow-up on the 

estion Jane just asked you. Were you working — you 

m't have to name them. But were you working with the 

Line adoption agency with the first adoption as you were 

th the second adoption? 

MRS. SMITH: Yes, uh-huh. 

REPRESENTATIVE MANDERINO: And what is your 

iderstanding of what their procedures with the birth 
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rents were predecision, so to speak, to call you and say 

have a baby for you? 

MRS. SMITH: The first, the first baby? They 

lied — they had advertised. I believe it was through an 

vertisement where they live. They just called the 

option agency and said they — she was going to be 

livering a baby in a month or so and she was interested 

. putting it up for adoption. 

And so that's how it started. Then they would 

> up and talk to them and verify that they wanted to go 

rough this. And as far as I was told, they still wanted 

> go through with it. And when we were called, we went up 

e next day. And when we got up there, all of a sudden, 

e birth father decided, Oh, I don't know. I don't think 

want to. 

MR. SMITH: In our first situation, the child 

! lost, actually, that situation was somewhat atypical. 

ie birth parents — actually, the day we got the call, the 

by had already been born. And they were in a panic to 

itually find a birth parent, largely based on some 

talifications the — 

REPRESENTATIVE MANDERINO: You mean to find an 

ioptive parent? 

MR. SMITH: Largely because of some 

talifications the birth parents themselves had placed on 
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at they wanted for an adoptive family. So when we got 

e call, he had already been born. And I think there were 

me things that — some i's that were left undotted like 

u were saying. 

I don't believe — at the time we went to pick 

m up, I don't believe any form had been signed at that 

int. By the second day, when we actually took custody, 

ybe. I'm not sure. But yeah, it was — it was not the 

oper way I'm sure. 

And also, I would also point out, too, because 

: talked about counseling a lot, we were so concerned that 

ey were receiving counseling. And all we got back was 

ie agency was offering that, but they were — they were 
\ 

rning it down. But they weren't required to take it, 

ich is probably another problem with the whole system. 

REPRESENTATIVE MANDERINO: I was just going to 

k you that. Particularly when we look to a shortening of 

ie time frame and a definitive — what's being proposed as 

definitive irrevocable time period. I'm not saying the 

•rds right. It seems to me that we ought to, at the same 

me, be looking on the other end. 

I mean, today we're hearing from adoptive 

imilies, for the most part, who have experienced it from 

ie end. We haven't really heard from — I don't know how 

>u would even find them — folks that change their mind; 
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though, we did hear from somebody who didn't change their 

nd. 

But it just seems everyone talks about the 

portance of counseling. And I'm — not so much for you 

t maybe to the Committee, I'd be curious at what other 

ates either mandate or require some sort of counseling 

fore that form can be signed. 

MRS. SMITH: I would like to just say, I do 

lieve that counseling should be done while she's 

egnant. They have nine months to make a decision. I 

derstand that after a baby is born, a mother can change 

x mind. There's that bonding issue that goes on and that 

e has the right to keep her baby. 

But I think she should be counseled during 

egnancy and then after the birth of the child. But to 

e adoptive parents as baby-sitters until they decide what 

iey want to do is just cruel. It's terrible. And it has 

> be changed. It just has to be. It's not good for the 

did to be shuffled from one home to another. 

And if they're not sure, you know, I think 

trt of counseling, they did suggest give it to a family 

imber or foster parent maybe. But I do think that, you 

LOW, if people are going to continue to adopt in 

mnsylvania — I've read an article where a lot of 

lildren aren't being adopted in Pennsylvania because of 
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e laws. And that's sad. 

And I think it could be helped if — if the 

optive parents were looked at a little bit more and 

nsidered more. 

REPRESENTATIVE MANDERINO: Thank you. And 

en my other question is, those wonderful photos we saw 

e of whom? 

MRS. SMITH: The first baby ~ 

REPRESENTATIVE MANDERINO: Of Austin? 

MRS. SMITH: — that we lost, yeah. 

REPRESENTATIVE MANDERINO: Thank you. 

MR. SMITH: I'd like to make just one more 

dnt. When we mentioned foster care, one of the things 

iat we found surprising, to say the least, was that our 

torney explained to us that in the state, if a couple 

ves a child into the foster care system, they have to 

ove themselves fit parents before giving the child back, 

lereas they can give it to an adoptive parent and pull it 

ick at any time they want without any kind of explanation. 

CHAIRPERSON DALLY: I would just like to 

icognize Jane Mendlow, the Research Analyst with the 

immittee, who can comment on what's contained in 

ipresentative Blaum's bill as far as counseling is 

mcerned. 

MS. MENDLOW: Well, let's see. First off, 
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at we tried to do was make access to the counseling 

tter by providing people who are — parents who are 

ntemplating the relinquishment of their parent rights or 

ecuting a consent to an adoption to get that 

option-related counseling through an approved agency 

enever they are contemplating this event and make sure 

at that is available. If they can't afford to get that 

nd of adoption-related counseling, make that available at 

ast through the counseling fund that is sitting in every 

unty. 

In every county, the Adoption Law has a 

quirement of a $75 fee being submitted to the court 

enever there is report of intention to adopt. Quite 

ankly, we have tried to survey the county courts. And it 

— and the Supreme Court doesn't have access to this 

formation. 

But we suspect that there are thousands and 

lousands upon hundreds of thousands of dollars sitting in 

iese accounts that are really not being tapped. So that's 

ie of the things we're trying to do. And then also to 

ike the requirement that in every — in every step of the 

mgth of that hearing dealing with relinquishment to an 

lult or relinquishment to an agency or the final court 

iproval of the consents, that there be a section there 

tat basically identifies whether or not adoption-related 
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unseling has been offered to the birth parent, and if so, 

whom, for assurance that this was done by an 

option-approved program. 

CHAIRPERSON DALLY: Thank you. Any other 

estions for Ron or Robin Smith? 

(No response.) 

CHAIRPERSON DALLY: Thank you very much. The 

xt witnesses will be Brad and Jane Bechtel. And your 

ughter can certainly come forward. 

MRS. BECHTEL: I wasn't here earlier. So I'm 

t sure how you're doing this. Should I just read my 

stimony? 

CHAIRPERSON DALLY: If you'd like, you can 

ad your testimony. The Committee members now have a 

py. So you can proceed. 

MRS. BECHTEL: Okay. I am Jane from 

rrisburg, and my husband is Brad. This is Libby, our 

ughter. On July 24th, 1996, when she was just three days 

d, we took our adoptive daughter Libby home from the 

ispital. We were matched with her birth mother, Martha, 

trough a private adoption agency that arranges open 

[options. 

We met Martha for the first time just a few 

•urs before picking Libby up at the hospital. A social 

irker from the adoption agency had met with Martha many 
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mes during the months leading up to the birth and had 

scussed the birth father. 

Martha named a man I'll call Jeff as the birth 

ther. And the social worker began taking the necessary 

eps to locate Jeff in order to get him to relinquish his 

rental rights. Unfortunately, after many weeks, she was 

t able to make contact with him. 

So our lawyer placed the necessary 

vertisements to let him know that he had a daughter and 

he did not take certain steps, his parental rights would 

i terminated involuntarily. After waiting the required 

me period for a response and getting none, our lawyer had 

iff's parental rights terminated involuntarily in February 

97. 

Martha's parental rights were also officially 

xminated at that time; although, she had signed a consent 

i adopt just a couple of weeks after Libby's birth. Of 

urse, at any time up to the actual termination 

aring — in our case, a period of seven months — either 

bby of Libby's birth parents could have changed their 

nds. And we would have had no choice but to relinquish 

r daughter to them. 

With the termination of the birth parents' 

.rental rights, the hearing to finalize the adoption was 

heduled for May 6, 1997, when Libby would be nine and a 

TROUTMAN REPORTING SERVICE 
(570) 622-6850 



70 
If months old. On May 1st, 1997, we received a letter 

om Martha that was to turn our lives upside down for the 

xt nine months. 

In her letter, she told us that Libby's real 

rth father was not Jeff, but rather another man — I'll 

ill him Don — with whom she had been having a long term, 

though on-again-off-again, relationship at the time 

le got pregnant. She indicated that she was telling us 

ds now because Don said they, quote, can't let 

x — Libby — live without knowing the truth, unquote. 

Martha assured us that Don didn't want to 

srupt the adoption, nor did she. Although initially very 

sturbed by this news, after talking to the adoption 

icial worker, our attorney and Martha, my husband and I 

ire fairly confident that Don would voluntarily relinquish 

.s parental rights so that we could reschedule the 

nalization of the adoption. 

After all, Don was incarcerated at the time 

id still is, and obviously wouldn't be able to take care 

: Libby. Because we are strong proponents of open 

[option, we wrote a letter to Don telling him about 

irselves and Libby and indicating that we would be happy 

i meet him sometime. We also sent along pictures of 

bby. 

The adoption agency's social worker arranged 
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> send Don the relinquishment papers so that he could sign 

tern, but he kept putting it off. He would say that he was 

dng to sign the papers, but then he just wouldn't get 

ound to doing it. 

In the meantime, he was transferred to a 

fferent facility, which made contact more difficult. 

nally, Don asked me and my husband to visit him at the 

ison so that he could meet us and to see Libby. This 

.sit took place on September 9th, 1997. 

Within minutes of his arrival to the tiny 

ison conference room where Brad and I, Libby, and two 

[option agency social workers were crammed tight, and with 

bby on his lap, Don very plainly said to us, "Well, I 

int you to know that I do want my daughter." 

The devastation both Brad and I felt was 

idescribable. But for some reason neither of us can 

plain, we said nothing in response to Don's statement and 

Ifered no physical reaction. We just let him keep 

ilking. One of the social workers pointed out to Don that 

scause Libby had been with us basically since birth and we 

sre the only parents she had ever known, it would be quite 

ird on her if she were removed from our custody. 

His response was, "Well, I think she's young 

lough. She'll adapt." Libby was almost 14 months old at 

le time. He said that he planned to have his parents, 
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th in their late 50's, quote, watch, unquote, Libby until 

was released from prison. 

During our brief visit, Don went on to ask 

out the birth mother and the arrangements, quote/unquote, 

had with her. We explained that we send her letters and 

ctures periodically and visited with her at the adoption 

ency's picnic in June and had plans to see her a couple 

times a year. 

We assured him that we would do the same with 

m. After more small talk that was friendly but 

productive, we prepared to leave. Just before saying 

od-bye, Don asked the social worker, "How long will it 

ke before my parents can pick her up", meaning Libby. 

The social worker told him that many things 

d to be taken care of before we could even think about 

ing that. Don kissed Libby, shook our hands. And a 

ard returned him to his cell. Later in the prison 

rking lot, with me fighting tears and my husband so angry 

could hardly speak, the social worker tried to assure us 

at even if Don wanted custody of Libby, there was no way 

could take care of her. 

The social worker said that she would begin 

e process of involuntarily terminating his parental 

ghts. We returned home deeply depressed but trying to 

main positive. The day after our visit to the prison, 
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n called the social worker. 

And after he again inquired about the 

rangements, quote/unquote, we had with the birth mother, 

e social worker asked him if he was seeking to make some 

nd of financial arrangement in exchange for signing off 

his parental rights. When he indicated he was, she told 

m it was illegal and could not be done. 

His response was a dejected-sounding, "Ooooh." 

th the knowledge that Don was apparently only seeking 

at money he could get from us and didn't seem genuinely 

mcerned about his daughter, we went forward with the 

itition to involuntarily terminate his parental rights 

th a lighter heart but still some reservations about the 

tcome of the situation. 

As it turned out, our caution was warranted. 

1 we had to do was make it to November 6th, 1997 without 

•n's making any objections to our petition. On November 

h, Don's mother contacted the judge in charge of the case 

id asked to make an objection on her son's behalf since he 

s incarcerated. 

She was permitted to do so. She also hired an 

torney to represent her son at a full hearing at which 

ie judge would listen to testimony as to whether Don's 

rental rights should be terminated. We too hired an 

torney, at a cost of $150 an hour, to advise us and 
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present our interests at the hearing. 

In consultation with our attorney, Brad and I 

cided that we would ask for DNA tests to prove Don's 

ternity since the birth mother admitted to having 

lations with both Jeff and Don around the time Libby was 

nceived. In retrospect, we should have asked for the DNA 

sts when we first learned of Don's existence; but there 

s a reason we didn't. 

One of the grounds on which we were trying to 

voluntarily terminate Don's parental rights was 

•andonment. Despite knowing early on in the birth 

ther's pregnancy that he could be the father, Don made no 

tempts to make contact with Libby or support her 

nancially for at least a 4-month period, the legal time 

riod for abandonment. 

Had a DNA test proved conclusively that he was 

ie birth father, we were concerned that his attorney would 

ccessfully argue that Don's 4-month period didn't begin 

itil the test results were received; and therefore, our 

•andonment argument would be negated. 

Once the situation came down to a court fight 

» involuntarily terminate Don's rights, we were faced with 

ie very real possibility that he wasn't even the birth 

ither. So we made a strategic decision to ask for DNA 

ists, knowing that our abandonment argument later might 
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11 prove useless, but wanting to be absolutely sure we 

ren't going to lose our daughter to a man who was not her 

rth father. 

The DNA tests were performed on Libby and the 

rth mother on January 9th, 1998. And the waiting began 

r the test to be done on Don and then for the results. 

ring those long weeks, we did a lot of praying and 

Iking about what-if's. 

Brad and I and the birth mother were almost 

rtain that the results would only confirm our belief that 

n was in fact the true birth father. From the time of 

r first meeting with Don when he first told us he wanted 

s daughter, we had been suffering from sleepless nights, 

ying jags, and a constant state of anxiety due to the 

icertainty of our future together as a family. 

In fact, we stopped planning for the long 

nge future altogether. Not only did we not know if Libby 

>uld be with us forever, but we also didn't know how 

nancially debilitating a court battle would be. These 

lelings intensified during the long wait for the DNA test 

suits. 

Brad likened our situation to one in which a 

did has a terrible illness and a cure has yet to be 

tund. Our extended family and friends were likewise 

ncerned and anxious and were very supportive of us during 
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is hugely trying time. 

They tried to comfort us by saying that no 

dge in his right mind would take Libby from you. Indeed, 

ere were several factors weighing against Don, including 

s prison record and his apparent attempt to extort money 

om us. Yet it seemed we were constantly hearing news 

ories about children being taken from loving adoptive 

rents and returned to birth parents who had committed 

milar or even worse acts. 

We were deeply worried that our situation 

uld end up as one of those sad and bizarre cases. On 

bruary 12th, 1998, more than nine months after we 

iginally learned of Don's existence, we received the DNA 

st results. Don is not Libby's birth father. 

Our reactions ranged from disbelief to 

ation. After all we had been through, he wasn't even the 

rth father. On May 7th, 1998, when our daughter was just 

couple of months shy of her second birthday, her adoption 

is finalized once and for all. At last, Libby was legally 

r daughter. 

We were finally able to plan for our future 

igether as a forever family. Over the past year and a 

ilf, Brad and I have had countless discussions about 

tether to adopt a second child. After considering many 

ictors, including the possibility that a second adoption 
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ght be disrupted, we have decided not to adopt anymore 

ildren. 

Even if we were to take the leap a second 

me, we know that we would not adopt a child in 

nnsylvania, given our state's current adoption laws. The 

me period in which birth parents can revoke a consent to 

opt is simply too long, and there is no statute of 

mitations for putative fathers claiming their parental 

ghts. 

As a result, disruptions can occur weeks or 

nths or even years after the child has been placed with 

optive parents. By that time, the adoptive parents and 

ild have already bonded. The disruption causes 

measurable anguish to the adoptive parents and the child 

d can possibly damage the child's ability to later bond 

th any care giver. 

My husband and I simply don't want to risk 

[opting in Pennsylvania again. 

CHAIRPERSON DALLY: Thank you very much for 

iur testimony. Any questions? 

MS. MENDLOW: Thank you very much, once again, 

ir a very thorough explanation of what turned out to be a 

mderful outcome with your beautiful daughter here. But I 

ve a question again about the agency. In this situation, 

ie agency was handling things working with you hand in 
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ove. 

And yet the issue of the DNA test didn't come 

early on as to, you know, this issue of who's the 

ther. Could you talk about that again or clarify for us? 

you think that — that the DNA test should be done 

enever a putative father indicates, makes a claim of — 

MRS. BECHTEL: Well, our — it was a strategic 

cision not to have the DNA test, as I said, because we 

ew as soon as we knew of Don's existence that it was a 

ssibility that we should have the DNA test done. But at 

at time, our attorney told us that if we did, there was a 

ry real chance that we wouldn't be able to argue 

andonment later. 

And that was our strongest argument against 

.s claiming his parental rights. 

MR. BECHTEL: If I could, too, one of the 

dngs that concerns me is the — I mean, you say, Couldn't 

IA tests be done any time? I mean, I don't know how many 

lople realize that putative fathers aren't that 

icessarily easy to track down. 

I mean, for one thing, one of the reasons 

lese guys don't want to be served is they don't want to 

it child support put on them if for some reason this would 

.1 go sour. So, you know, does the guy show up in three 

sars and say, Hey, I'm the father? Now we do a DNA test. 
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d if we do, what's that mean? 

Does that mean now that we've decided, Oh, 

rry. Let's undue three years. You're in. They're out. 

d that's more — to me — the more important problem of 

I mean, if somebody just said, Yeah, I'm the dad and 

: could all count on that forever, that would be great. 

MS. MENDLOW: I was just going to say that in 

summary of various state laws across the country, there 

a listing I have here that relates specifically to the 

sue of limits on attaching a file adoption decree. And 

> your testimony is right on that issue. 

And this is something that we will certainly 

ke a look at. I know Representative Blaum will be 

terested in it. 

CHAIRPERSON DALLY: Any further questions? 

e question a little bit off the subject as far as open 

rsus closed adoptions. In an open adoption situation, 

ie adoptive parents are those that lay the groundwork as 

ir as contact with the birth parents; or how does that 

»rk? 

MRS. BECHTEL: The way our agency works is 

•s as open as the birth parents are comfortable with. So 

: the birth parents don't want to have contact, then there 

i no contact. But the adoptive parents are required, even 

: the birth parents have — do not wish to have an open 
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lationship, the adoptive parents are still required to 

nd letters and pictures — or I should say a letter and 

ctures on the child's birthday every year to the adoption 

ency on the chance that the birth parent would want to 

e those. 

CHAIRPERSON DALLY: And does it matter whether 

e parental rights have been voluntarily or involuntarily 

rminated? 

MRS. BECHTEL: As it turned out in our 

se — well, obviously, if somebody's parental rights have 

en involuntarily terminated, they don't want to have much 

ntact with you. But it turned out that Jeff was Libby's 

rth father. And when she was just shy of being two, we 

d meet him and his family. And we have a good 

lationship with them. 

So it just all depends on the people involved 

d whether they're comfortable or not. 

CHAIRPERSON DALLY: So there are adoption 

encies that — that are strictly open adoptions? 

MRS. BECHTEL: As I understand it, for 

>mestic adoptions for the agency that we work with, if you 

e doing a domestic adoption, you need to be comfortable 

th openness. Now, again, as I said, the openness is 

sed on the birth parents' comfort level. 

But we have seen Libby's birth mother about a 
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If a dozen times over the last three years. She has our 

dress. We have hers, phone numbers, everything. And the 

me with her birth father and his parents so — 

CHAIRPERSON DALLY: Very good. Thank you. 

y other questions, comments? Representative Wogan, 

ease. 

REPRESENTATIVE WOGAN: Thank you, Mr. 

airman. Jane, I — I'm not sure how, looking at the 

nclusion that you reached in your testimony, how changing 

e time period for — within which a birth parent can take 

ck their giving up their child, with shortening that, I 

n't really see how that helps adoptive parents who would 

in your situation. 

The problem as I saw in your situation is 

rtha just either didn't know who the real father was of 

e baby or, for some reason, wasn't being honest. 

rtainly, the men here do not look too well, I guess, in 

e eyes of society, neither man. 

But I — I wonder if perhaps staff could 

swer a question because I handled adoptions many, many 

ars ago. But the — the revocation notice that goes in 

e newspapers that, say, terminated Jeff — that was the 

rst — 

MRS. BECHTEL: Right. 

REPRESENTATIVE WOGAN: — first male 

TROUTMAN REPORTING SERVICE 
(570) 622-6850 



82 
volved — terminated his rights, do those — if you can 

call. Maybe staff could help with this. Does the 

rmination notice when a father is not being responsive 

cus on just his name as opposed to, say, just a baby was 

rn on such and such a date? 

MRS. BECHTEL: The baby — it didn't give any 

me for Libby. It just gave his name. We saw a copy of 

e notice that was put out. It was his name and on such 

d such a date, a baby girl was born and if you do not 

spond within X number of weeks, then your rights will be 

voluntarily terminated. It was all indicated in that 

vertisement and told where he should call. 

REPRESENTATIVE WOGAN: And that means, of 

urse, that that's the essence of your problem, that 

at — that notice affected Jeff and not Don? 

MRS. BECHTEL: Yeah. Although, Don knew it 

s possible he was the father. And that's the point I 

ke later, is that putative fathers need to have some 

sponsibility for their actions. If they've had relations 

th a woman, they need to follow up and find out if a 

egnancy occurred; and if it did, whether they're the 

ther. 

And if there's a chance that they are the 

ther, then they need to claim their rights right away and 

•t wait until the child is 9 months old or 14 months old 
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3 years old. 

REPRESENTATIVE WOGAN: I agree with you 100 

rcent. I'm just wondering whether just shortening the 

me period in which someone can take back their giving up 

eir child, whether that solves the problem? 

MRS. BECHTEL: Well, we had a couple of 

oblems. I mean, there was no real problem with the birth 

ther. But the fact that it took seven months to 

ficially terminate the parental rights of both Jeff and 

rtha, during that 7-month period, either one of them 

uld have said I want her. And we would have had to give 

ir back. 

When Libby was placed with us, I didn't bond 

th her right away. And I started to worry about it. 

iter we had had her for about two weeks, I thought 

imething should have happened by now. And I realized it 

is my head telling my heart, Don't fall in love with her 

it because Martha can take her back. 

And it took — once I realized that was what 

LS happening, I did start to bond with her. But by then, 

.'s too late. You know, if — if Martha had taken her 

ick when she was a month old, I would have been 

svastated. 

REPRESENTATIVE WOGAN: So in other words, even 

: Don wouldn't have come into the picture, you still would 
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ve been unhappy? 

MRS. BECHTEL: Yes. Seven months is way too 

ng. And as it was, we weren't scheduled to finalize the 

option then until Libby was almost 10 months old, 9 and a 

If months old. 

REPRESENTATIVE WOGAN: When you go through 

is, what do you think about the 30-day period of time 

at's set forth in House Bill 1533? 

MRS. BECHTEL: Is the 30-day time period 

>t — I haven't read it lately. Can you clarify it for me 

iat it is? Is that — 

REPRESENTATIVE WOGAN: Thirty days within 

gning the consent. 

MRS. BECHTEL: Then it's over regardless of 

tether it's gone to court? 

REPRESENTATIVE WOGAN: Well, purportedly 

lat's what the bill does. 

MRS. BECHTEL: Okay. Thirty days wouldn't be 

id because you'd know the 30 days would be up. There's 30 

iys; and once I hit that 30th day, it's over. But the way 

; is now, when Martha signed her consent to adopt, it was 

itil the court date. 

And it takes a while for the court to schedule 

tese things. And depending on the calendar, how heavy the 

ilendar is in that court, you may have to wait much longer 
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an 30 days. So as long as you know — 

REPRESENTATIVE WOGAN: Thank you. 

MRS. BECHTEL: I would think 30 days would 

— 30 days is a lot better than what it is now. 

MR. BECHTEL: Yeah. If I could, I know I'm 

popular in some circles. I'm not as concerned 

cessarily whether at 24 hours or a week or two weeks as I 

L the fact that it's — it can be never ending. I mean, 

didn't have anything until literally — I don't even 

ow the date. You'd have to look it up. 

But it was like almost two years. And at that 

int — and even though the mother had signed, if the 

ther had won, the mother's back in the picture. And 

tere's just been a court case reported last week in 

nnsylvania Law Weekly, the thing about one of our 

lustrious courts decided that third party adoptive 

xents have no standing to even challenge this when one of 

ese parents want the baby back. 

So we're way out here in left field for months 

ion months at a time, which that's the part that really 

it me. 

REPRESENTATIVE WOGAN: Thank you to both of 

iu. 

CHAIRPERSON DALLY: Just one last question. 

MS. MENDLOW: Very briefly. You referred to 
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e agency as a Pennsylvania adoption agency? 

MRS. BECHTEL: Yeah. It's — it's licensed in 

veral states, but Pennsylvania's one. 

MS. MENDLOW: Would you be willing to name the 

ency? It's not the agency that did anything wrong. But 

uld you be interested in advising us as to the name? 

MRS. BECHTEL: It's Adoptions From the Heart. 

MS. MENDLOW: Okay. Thanks. 

CHAIRPERSON DALLY: Thank you, Mr. and Mrs. 

chtel. Now, just to run through our list of witnesses 

at were on our agenda today that are being called are 

chard and Maria Joel, are they here by chance? Rod and 

nny Smith, Debra Strunk, Jennifer Holtzman and Cliff 

acey, and John and Brenda Werner? 

Is there anyone else that wishes to offer 

stimony before the Committee, even if you've testified 

ready and you wish to add anything else to your 

stimony? 

(No response.) 

CHAIRPERSON DALLY: Okay. Seeing no one, I 

uld like to thank all of our witnesses today. I think 

sed upon the emotion involved in this issue, it took a 

eat deal of courage for all of you to be here today. We 

lally appreciate you not only taking the time, but 

oviding us the most insightful testimony. 
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And I think it will do our Task Force a great 

al of good to review the record in this matter. And 

so, as we go forward, I would expect that we're going to 

seeing something from the Adoption Advisory Committee in 

e spring of 2000, as Nancy Marcus Newman indicated in her 

stimony. 

So I'm sure there's going to be additional 

rk that this Task Force will do to address the concerns 

at were presented to the Task Force this afternoon. I'd 

ke to thank those Committee members that were present. 

tanks. 

(Whereupon, at 3:19 p.m., the hearing 
adjourned.) 
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HUT™ 39 U ? 8 11 , becomep, 612 26 25 27 3 27 6 

0 3 67 5 atypical [i] 6317 i 8 7 2 l i 5 2716 27 21 28 3 
6 A p r i l P I 3 2 i 6 50.16 A™*»m

57l3 »JJ bedroomp, 5514 2 8 8
0 »» »g 

«4 8 8 1 7 5725 6020 6020 v 299 2918 2920 
\* areap] 615 401 g69 * 3 H ? W « . £ 3 3 0 6 3 0 1 5 3 0 1 6 

I - . p , . . , 3713 authorial] i 0 1 0 £ » J J , ™ 3 - 3 3124 « 
If W » 7812 T g * a S ? ^ 4 ; ; 43 36l5 g g g f . 

argument [3] 74 20 4014 4315 4316 T r ^ g Y i 40. 37 21 37.23 38 3 
5 20 74 25 7814 44 9 48 21 4917 / ? « " , / 38 7 38 9 3815 

armsp] 27 22 3419 55 4 67.7 67 8 "SI??11™.,,. 7 , - 3817 38-23 39 5 
23 36.22 avenue [l] 4819 ] 4 2 0 7319 39 25 40 3 40 7 
425 A r m y m 2816 average m 324 behaviorpi 2 8 1 3 JJ-8 J 2 " 4 2 2 3 

arose [ i ]4519 a v o i d [i] 56 24 2 9 1 5 46 11 4614 4618 
124 arranged pi 3310 avoiding m 6124 behind m 37 25 5015 50-25 512 
5 1 1 7 0 2 5 awaiting [i] 24 2 belief m 7510 514 51:14 52 3 

arrangement pi 27 7 awarded m 2813 belonesm 2118 5 2 1 8 5 2 2 0 5 2 2 1 

0 20 2815 73 5 J ™ ! ™ <!, Oeiongsp] 2118 5 2 2 2 52<23 5 2 2 4 

»«„.<»»»»«<.,., aware pi 5018 benefit pi 821 53.11 5312 5315 
arrangements [4] 5 i 7 5 2 . i4 3 5 n

 l
4

J
34 «" «" " " 

5 17 28 19 37 4 72 4 OJ.II t j t 54 18 55 5 55 8 
5 1/ 2 8 i v 37 4 7Z.4 a w a y [ 4 ] 1 7 2 5 55 6 B e r y l [ i j 2 1 0 5514 5517 55 22 

5 S E T 55 ™ - 1ff'-B,»- - "» ™ ™ 
017 arrival [11 71.10 b a b i e S p ] 49>2 261 29 7 29 20 58 7 58 7 589 

arriving [i] 55 8 babvram 1 9 1 4 39.4 5512 57 23 5815 58.15 59 2 
418 articles 65-24 ^ " m 33 5 5923 59.24 629 » 3 597 598 

aside [i]33i 33 7 33 9 33 21 better [5] 26 5 "*£ °if, °r\Z 
3 asks [i] 2415 3415 35 5 371 58 20 6115 67 2 g g g.JJ g . g 
10 aspect p, 1622 « » « 2 0 55 4 854 J 3 2 0 g g « « 

1 2 4 1814 18 25 5
6J

2 g 2 2 6 6 between p, 181 g 2 69 3 6917 
aspects [5] 1810 5 6 1 9 57io 5814 LLLA™ - « $?2S $ ? ? ?$f 

3 19 3 1916 211 5 8 i 9 5 8 2 0 60 20 JeVOndl,1' 3 7 5 1\? lit l\]n 

3511 6125 63 2 63 3 blg[i] 34 24 744 74.11 7417 
, n Assembly[4] 4 20 63 7 63.19 65.11 bill[12] 8 4 89 !Zt* 'l* 'i% 
M 921 1021 111 6513 668 8116 8-17 125 126 LI* Li\L '°° 
, „ assist pi 13 12 82 4 82 6 82 9 4318 4914 5212 ™ J g-g g°3 
4 2 3 37 20 39.12 8518 5824 66 23 84 8 £ » J * ™23 

120 Assistant [i] 2 5 baby's m 261 J * 1 ' 8o24 80 25 813 
9 20 assumes[ii 384 baby-sitterspi 60 2 h™*™\t. l5

n 8110 83 7 
6 1 0 assurances, 682 « " J J2 J ? ?216 biMulayp, 7618 

assurep] 611 b j ^ d p i 3 8 1 9 1219 1423 317 J ® 3 _ „ „ , 
7 2 1123 72.19 * 1 6 454 bltp] 47.25 55.23 

assuiedpi 12.19 badp, 55 24 8419 b m d i n g p ] 1 6 1 1 6214 66 3 7916 
525 7011 72 9 badgenng[i] 481 4011 bizarrep] 7611 
424 assuring [ii 131 balance pi 30.10 biological pi 25:22 B laumpi 3 4 
35 attachedm 13-25 » » 261^5921 411 412 422 

attacbingpi 7910 g — J ™ » » B ™ « » 3 ^ | » 55
2

3 79
7.13 1 4 2 ° 

56 at?chmentsW254 J g — « 4
8

? J 3 Blaum'spi 4914 
219 attempt [2] 5812 J J J ^ 1 1 1 [53 1415 1418 14 22 66 23 
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814 Icapablep] 262 I 804 8223 8612 Icircles[l] Oft I 66 22 68.14 8616 
29 5 change m 1117 circumstance [i] 87 4 87.10 

617 Capitol [i] i n 25 7 3017 49 4 2921 Committee's [l] 
219 carp] 37 6 64 25 651 6511 circumstances pi 10 20 

care [is] 8-20 1121 changedm 1310 2317 committing [i] 4713 
2 2112 30 24 3612 27 6 3315 56.2 citizens p] 1120 common [l] 4016 
3 25 3913 5511 5610 56 5 5818 6518 1 3 1 Commonwealth m 

601 6613 6616 °9 20 claim [5] 57 1.1 39:20 401 
7019 72-15 72 21 changes [8] 615 29 22 53 21 78 6 45 2 48-5 48-18 

821 77.16
 9A " } " " " J 1 8224 Commonwealth's!!] 

7 1 5 canngp] 34.20 3J1 30 2 315 claimed p] 56 7 9 20 
38 24 45 21 j ^ ^ claiming p] 77 8 Compact p] 1816 

7 1 , case [is] 1013 22.8 changing [i] 81.9 7 g l 5
 6 l J

 w y 
912 S5 S£ «!6 £ j " n ? 2 r 1 0 compelledm 46 21 

48-25 50 23 5415 en6 0**1! 5 3 1 9 clausep] 40.10 complaints [1] 48 7 
118 69.19 73 18 8010 checks[i] 314 clear p] 4516 complete pi 36.16 

85 14 child pi] 51 clear-cut [i] 191 37 3 58 23 
216 cases p] 38.20 50-25 79 718 9-24 clearly[4] 33.25 Completely [l] 4610 
4 2 7611 lo-io 5 3 15 4 3 4 5 53 2 j , M completing [ij 2618 
29 causesp] 73 {™3 g ^ }7J0 clientp] 5.20 complexp] 118 
7 4 ' . 1910 1917 2112 Cliffp]4417 8613 46.8 

caution [i] 7315 2 l 20 2122 22 3 close P ] 28-6 36 8 complication pj 
922 cetebratep] 46.1 2217 245 2411 c l o J j e d B 1 1 5 0 ^ 
819 cel lpj 7217 2417 25 2 25 3 79 „ compiehensivepj 

certain^ 15 8 g i 7 25 21 30 24 n i 2 U : 2 4 1 2 7 

5 1 . 1912 3111 6910 33 ̂  341 37 7 ^ U ^ ^ 3 U „ „ 
certainly pj 205 5 J3 ? | J | 2 f c o?« : i o , |Pl 7 1 4 comprehensively PI 

l g 24 22 y296 308 J f 4 g g J ? , CoWp, 49 8 ^ 7 
8 J 7 34 7 59 24 68 9 5 1 3 5213 58.9 colleagues p] 614 conceived [i] 74 6 
4 2 7912 8117 5 8 1 3 5 8 1 6 59.3 college p] 3314 concern [4] 121 
623 certified p] 401 59 9 59.25 60 4 Columbia [i] 711 2615 43-14 60 6 
7 certify [i] 881 60 7 612 61-23 combinations pj concerned m 131 
614 ceterap] 61.15 g * 9 g j ° g ' g 18 23 13 7 619 6411 
3 21 Chadwickp] 1-21 7523 76 24 77 4 COmfOTtp] 76:2 66 24 73-11 74 17 

4 7 7 7 n 7713 77.14 8024 75.25 85.6 
07 Chairp]3 6 9.5 78 23 8111 82 25 comfortablep] 7922 c o n O B r n s l s i 12 8 

913 83 5 8017 80 22 12 20 1313 7817 
5.25 chaired [i] 1019 child 's ps] 7-3 comforted [i] 218 8 7 < L^_, i 

Chairman«] 3 4 18." 24 23 33:24 coming m 19-4 conce r t ed^ 317 
5 1420 3213 5325 3715 387 3818 cromnentp] 6622 conchjsionp] 819 

5419 818 3821 3822 391 C M n m e n t 8 ? 2 3 conc^vefyp, 

8 1 7 Chairperson pa] «_J g* 0 W Z H
 1 0 2 5 3118 5012 2 9 2 0 . 7 4 1 6

 otn 
B I / 120 41 8 25 " j 8 0 J 815 concretep] 819 
1-5 910 1319 19 21 dnldrenp2] 820 c o j m n i s s i o n K ^ concurrent m 918 910 ZT, 33 Si3 !& S5 SS "TIE11 , « - — . «, 
-20 32 9 3512 3515 24.15 2911 29.13 917 8817 conference p] 7111 

3518 3520 35 22 2917 30.10 3116 Commission's p] confident p] 7015 
, , 411 4215 43.7 3510 3914 5911 1018 confirmril 7510 
11 44 11 4414 44 20 5918 59 20 6110 commitment p] 2619 - S m i t i M i m 

1719 4511 49:18 49 22 65 25 76 7 77 2 61 11 confirmation p] 187 si si nv cS; s m ss ̂ ^2ii? ——JJ »• 
86 si ai ss cLiLsS21 4910 "rrrr is .SUE. -
I6 6015 62.16 66 20 ™™**™ J?J° \\Q \\% £ confusion p] 57 20 

77?9 I l l s l?63 •JST'SMI jfc 72? J? JS
M Connecticut p] 713 

112 8018 81.4 8524 48 2 4812 48 23 919 922 1013 consciousp] 2724 
il.24 869 86.20 chooshlgp] 496 ° « } ° * " J 4913 

Chatterp] 3:22 chose n 3414 JJJJ {£„ Jf^ consensual pj 5413 
18 20 5 2 1 ° 5 4 - 2 ! 3616 43 3 5117 135 1 3 ] 8 1410 consensus p] 4016 
7 8 challenge [ij 8517 Chris p] 122 49.24 16 4 20 8 2514 consent [47] 4 22 
7 8 chance m 2824 Christmas pj 46.1 4514 48.10 48 24 619 6 21 7 7 

2923 342 7812 chunkp] 3424 5 0 1 3 6 0 1 6 6 5 5 7 1 3 7 1 6 7 1 7 
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4 I 5121 884 I 57 21 I 2612 26.20 YF\ Idepressed[l] 72 24 
524 correctly[i] 2016 cribpj 267 27 18 3 0 9 31.23 Dermodym 123 
l" COStp] 73 25 Critical[5] 12 23 3 J 2 4 I*™ 3 2 3 4-6 
l?4 COStspilO.5 2710 3821 403 409 3 4 7

6 %]* |J}J descnbep] 34 18 
7 4 counsel [2] 211 4 7 5 , 5815 58 21 6818 deserting [l] 581 
714 2712 cruelp]24 23 6517 3412 8418 84.19 deserve [3] 12 21 
3*23 counseled [l] 6514 crushed m 5719 84 20 851 85 3 57 20 59-20 
JJJ counseling p9] 4 23 crying m 75.14 85 4 deserves pi 341 
Si 0 8 6 810 812 curem 7523 deal[7] 15 23 25 8 designation[i] 17.5 
J-; 813 815 1212 curiousm 65 5 %% g j ° M 4 despite [3] 27 23 
;•?- 3015 3018 34 9 mmmtL! *.,* 8 6 2 3 8 7 2 33 6 7411 4 1 3 3412 3925 402 c u ™ n t l ? 5 2 Jf{, dealings 422 d S L ^ " 5 9 

402 407 40.14 " 4 J5 2 2 4 " 54 16.21 6722 " " P " " " 
5 5 4219 42-21 4315 3 U 2 5 9 8 7 7 5 dealtm 54-2 detenmnedp] 611 
1 4319 4324 441 CUStodyp.4] 2715 E J ™ ! ! ? 2315 
05 443 446 476 2720 282 287 death[i]35l detennines [ii 1812 
724 479 5525 64 11 2810 2814 384 debilitating [U 7519 dBtBn^adns p ] „ 6 

6412 65 4 65 6 38 5 4619 62 8 Deborah [l] 4415 A-,Mtn««wl „, «>. 
8! g? J?? SS M7 ?122 " ^ - i " 86" ^totedra 564 

?79 S i dadm 79 5 D ^ n b ^ ? i U 3 devastating!!, 3319 
, 0 counselor^] 42 4 dailyp]3l9 5015 ^-LJ 2 4 , - devastation pi 7115 
?? countp, 3617 Daleyp] 122 ^If^S 65.16 developedpi 109 

7 9 6 * ^ i • ^ V . decidedpu 2423 J ^ m 2 5 1 6 

915 counterbalancing m Daley's pi 2.13 2516 50 21 56.13 diedpi 58 2 
1525 Dally [54] 120 5710 5811 6314 difference [i] 3415 

5 25 Countiesp] 4.8 41 6 5 8 25 74 3 771 79 2 different [8] 34 10 
countless [l] 7623 910 1319 19 21 8516 3713 3 8 1 519 

7 9 country m 79 8 1 9 2 5 ^ 1 3 2 0 1 5 decision p»] 7 5 52 15 53.13 53.14 
S S ^ S 7« 2019 2510 3 2 6 8 7 2113 2117 716 
county [181 4 6 329 3512 3515 2125 2313 25 2 difficult [4] 7 5 

915 4 7 517 9 3 3518 3520 35 22 29 6 3014 33 23 ™,T rv>i 71is 
6 20 13 21 2119 2711 41 1 4215 43 7 33 §4 34 4 34 4 £ ? ™™ ?! J 

2712 3215 36-4 44 n 4 4 1 4 4420 J J f ^ n 4^ {3 dlllgentp] 117 
7 25 4 * 4 4 9 2 5 g | n 4511 4918 49 22 4 5 . 1 7 45-20 48 2 directed [i] 9.17 

S ? i « ? A 5 0 8 5 1 8 5 1 1 1 57 21 5914 6510 directly [i] 1119 
6711 6714 5119 5125 525 7424 788 directorm 27 

4 2 COUnty'sp] 814 528 534 5310 * , „ „ , „ 3322 ' S B 3 l 0 5724 
COUOlerin 13 24 53 23 54 20 54 24 An. .. 

716 2023 262 33 8 6015 6216 6620 4 7 ! . , „„ disappear [i] 291 
16 45 22 5014 6615 68 4 687 6813 decisive [l] 30 9 disbelief [l] 7615 
9 23 6 9 1 7 727 7618 7719 7915 80 6 decree [3] 6 22 discovered p] 58 6 

83 6 8018 814 85 24 20 3 79.10 5 8 7 

7 24 couples pi 51 8 6 9 8 6 2 0 deeply [5] 610 discuss pj 1223 
3 18 3 6 r 5 damaged] 7715 1223 4824 7224 dfec^sedpj i 2 5 
6 22 courage m 86 23 date [151 10 4 22 22 J 6 1 0 20 7 69 2 

n o n courageousm 4919 g 2 4 2 4 2 2 7 2 defendantii, 545 d&scassingm 4 2 1 
0 2 0 coursep, 2220 g g S ? g J S*60!?111 * 1 6 1215 

6918 8214 82 5 82 9 84 22 «e*icits [11 616 discussion [l] 4815 
i „ court pi] 19 85 10 defined pi 33 25 discussions pi 1217 
J - " 714 816 925 dates[i]5215 definite pi 5917 2011 7623 

20 3 22 20 24 2 dauffhternai 181 definitive p] 201 disinterested pi 
0 25 27 2 27 14 27 17 l l i "'B" w a l"' 1<s 1

 CA ,« a , i o«->* 
Q17 97on S i I I M 2710 31.10 32-20 6418 6419 25 23 

3711 3716 39 3 4 5 1 8 5 5 1 0 6 8 9 degenerated [l] 277 dispose m 39 7 
3 16 39*7 4610 61.12 j * ' * 8 J*}9 §??, dejected-sounding p] disrupt m 7012 
3 1 6 62 7 62 8 6712 7

9 2 2 7 { - 4 ?3 J 73 8 disruptedp] 3011 
2 6 6715 67.23 74-21 ^ | Q ^ 2 3 Delaware [l] 712 5914 77.1 

7519 8415 84 22 n _ . . „, , , . deliberations pi disruption pj 304 
211 84 23 84 25 8514 Dauphinp] 36 4 122Q 3 5 ? » ' 77 [j 
2 6 court's pi 6-22 ' J j g ™ ^ 2 1 2 delighted [i] 1222 disruptions m 7710 

6 2 3 n»^«i™, « i i delivering pi 63 7 disservice pi 49 5 
£ wi... & •££" 3512 *-*• H" 2 % ' 711 

,2' 46 21 6714 8516 day-to-day pi 571 Democratic [i] 3.4 disturbed m 7013 
.1 Craig[S]l20 39 daysp6]710 715 Department^ 101 DNApsj 743 
13 2015 2019 2512 725 8 3 15 5 3719 39.11 3914 74 6 7416 74 24 
: ? " crammedp] 7112 15 5 1516 15 20 depending [4] 16 22 754 75 20 7613 

created [2] 143 1 6 3 2 1 1 0 2 2 1 6 1 7 2 1 8 2 1 8 4 2 4 
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8 25 either p] 6 22 examining m 15 21 factor [i] 17 6 fellp] 56.15 56 20 
518 27 20 27 21 28 25 example [2] 1912 factors [3] 15 25 felt[io] 213 29 7 

547 656 6919 5220 764 7625 336 3411 3413 
718 J}}5 8 3 1 0 exceptions 58 25 factual^ 5211 36 21 512 54 9 
414 ^ f ™ ? ' 5 2 7 exchanged] 73 5 f a i r s 24 24 251 » » 7 1 ' 5 

17 ? J excitedm 3217 253 466 4620 fewpi 514 3111 
elapsed [2] 37 23 « c n « » M 3 Z 1 7

 5 9 H ^ 3 3712 5621 68 23 
21 3 8 7 S S L ™ 4 ^ y » l 7015 fields 925 8519 
925 e a t i o n s 7616 executingp] 464 f a U [ ^ g 3 i 7 fifths 2520 
o n electeds 5123 exBcaAonm 7 1 6 familiess 108 fight[5] 24 9 2710 
0 21 elsewhere [l] 1118 g ^ ^ S ™ 29 5 318 33 17 2810 5716 74 21 
1}3 emerge [l] 29 22 - „ - „ « — . „ , 2 7 3510 491 49 5 fighting [1] 7218 
2 | 2 emotion [i] 86.22 "JSnTo 5 6 2 0 M 2 3 figure [i] 1512 
412 emotionalp] 7 3 exhibiteds 2915 f^fyilSiUl ?JJ **•?£! 3 9 1 5 4 8 7 

{ l . 24 12 24-25 2fi 21 . 23 5 25 18 319 79 10 
ill 27 9 318 601 existences 747 4525 4619 5022 fiiJ,",,,,, 
215 / / i » Ji» ouii ? 6 1 3 7 g 9 tiled[l] 2218 

emphasizes 3 1 6 expandsm 814 6521 7515 7524 ™**&*\oia » " 
117 employees [l] 42 7 expectpi 87 3 76 22 8014 1212 1819 28 2 
3 23 employments 5616 ^Cctant pi 33 8 farm 3111 43 25 filledm56l9 
J g empty pj 26 7 exSectedm 24 24 4 7 2 5 51 12 5 4 6 f«»alp«|6 22 33 25 

encountering pi 2 ? I M I 4 6 3 1 1 6 6 2 3 7 9 1 6 4 6 4 4 8 1 7 5 2 1 6 

4 1 8
 B l J 2lJ3 2 8 1 4 7919 52 16 5219 53 3 

3J endr«i 23 13 249 "P0*"?*™ 3 8 2 5 fashionpi 615 537 6723 
| { 8 W £ 2 1 M24 expeditiousp] 315 f a t e [ 1 ] 2 3 1 5 f inalitys 818 
23 7611 expenses 4117 faLteful[ll 3 6 1 8 5917 
9 1 8 endedpi 464 experiencepoj 318 f a m e r M w fmahzataon[4] 386 

endings 23 21 * " 3 3 2 0 3 J } 7 22 9 2212 22 25 _3 8 1 2 4 1 7 7 ^ 7 

ft2 3611 462 4611 f ° 2 2 I 3 * J 8 4 237 2322 2416 fmahzeM 242 
02 g 5 g 585 595 5910 2 5 2 2 2 6 2 5 2 9 l g 3222 6924 843 

endures m 319 experienced p] 4016 2920 2921 30 23 finalized p] 53 1 
1 1 «,««*««, ™ Vo M23 50 25 514 5218 7619 

enugmens ay experiences pj 43 12 52 22 52 24 52 25 finally rsi 2619 
811 enormous s 7 2 experiencingpi 5311 53 15 54 7 3619 5517 717 

ensure [4] 8 6 3224 54 11 54 18 55 22 762i 
817 4012 48 21 « _ _ * , . . , cC 56 5 63 14 69 2 w- f f l „ w „ , n *,n 

3 8 • experts pi 5 8 ~ A nn< T i 1 , rinancep] 720 
ensurings 4713 7 ST S34 f4*7 7°*, 7 4 ' 2 1013 16.4 
entered [l] 91 Expires p] 8817 75 n 7614 7617 financial [4j 4713 

5 - entire [4] 71 explain [l] 7117 78 4 78 6 7825 5 « 9 » " 73 5 
1814 301 4715 anjajneij^ 25 22 8013 813 8115 financially p] 7414 

,0,. entirely [2] 48 25 2617 5510 5716 82 3 8217 82 22 7519 
591 6 6 1 5 725 82 24 8513 findsp]714 

,1 4 entrusted pi 1124 explains pi 54 16 father's PI 23 16 finish [i] 50 6 
entry pj 20 2 explanation pi 6619 26

1
23 . finished pj 15 9 

,18 environment [4] 513 77 22 fathered pj 2120 firsts 4 2 6 24 
IS 14 5513 5715 59 23 explanations p] fathers s 819 92 20 22 2122 
5 7 especially p] 3317 53 14 12U 25 8 2919 29 11 30 5 34 18 
1310 5719 5918 expressp] 369 ™™ 7 7 8 7 8 1 9 4 1 6 4719 4 7 2 1 

.» =srn r." s s s s si £?»» ** §̂  s? ss 
3 " established p] 14 5 extort m 76 5 f 1 7512 8123 8125 

e v e m 2 8 / facilitator pi 3910 1010 5113 / 0 1 U 

events676 facilitatorss 3919 federallys 1815 J " ™ " ' J2 4 , 
820 evidences 882 f a d l i t y [ 1 ] ? 1 6 f c e p ]

 7
g l 6 6 ? 1 2 fo!kspi4724 5011 

M I ^ ^ S 6 ! 1 1 1 3 ° 1 6 f a ^ S P l 5122 feel ings 3418 « J ^ „ „ „ 
» I e x a « f r b a f J « 4 6 1 6 tetnlU 206 3425* **%"* 51 18 

'1.15 exact [4] 15:8 16:5 22 4 3613 40 5 feelings m 39 9 -• « 
17 2324 4520 £ J 4I25 £ ? ^ ^ 7 5 2 0 ' f f i y T S ? 62» 

exactly p] 2717 46 4 4615 47 5 feels pi 2117 f„ A At 
19 24 618 49 2 5319 5416 S T ™ J , followed pj 45 7 
15 24 examines 118 5510 55 23 7511 S U L f , , m i f o l l o w i n g [ 6 l 8 3 
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I future [8] 24 23 Iguym 78 24 I 82 2 I housekeeping [2] 
HV 2 8 . H'U guys[i] 78 22 helpedp] 3412 514 4123 

8 7fili half [6] 29.1 32.22 66 2 huge p] 3417 
19 '°"" f 701 76 23 811 helpful p] 42 24 hugely [l] 761 

022 <*™™l™ 4 2 ° 845 4721 6018 Humanp] 3719 
9 22 921 10 21 11 hj j f^ay n 2 5 helping p ] 4715 3912 
17 9 gemunem 2619 2 3 2 2 ' 48^9 * hundredsp, 6718 
1214 genuinely [i] 7310 hand [i] 77 25 helpless PI 3411 hurts pi 35 3 

geographical [i] handed pj 57 24 helps pi 471 8112 husband pq 3214 
IL :Lr 5922 hereby [l] 881 32 20 32 23 3317 
,,, &£m 34'22 handlepi 189 berepj 5 0 2 o 812 364 369 553 
3 1 gifts [ i]5619 5611 herself m « 1 1 5 5 9 5 5 2 1 5 5 2 2 

!5 20 Ginnyp] 35 22 handled pi 53 5 tZjf"i «< 5 6 3 5617 57 2 
1024 8613 8120 hesitant [i] 35 5 57 g 6012 6817 
*7 girlpj 264 33-9 handling m 7725 g * w 7 8 2 5 ; ; j 4 7 1 7 7 2 1 8 

«7 82 9 handspf 7216 m r a 9 8 3 2 1 3 ., 
given m 618 2417 hanDeninerei 5712 hierarchical pi 18 20 i s p i 64-3 

114 3816 5819 609 ^ J f " " * ™ 1821 ICPCpH816 
02 6125 77 5 happy m 2321 w g h p ] 2 6 2 l identifies PI 67 25 
2 25 gjver[i]7716 3611 37 9 46 2 himself p] 22 3 identity [l] 5018 

giving [3] 6617 5713 70 22 5523 ignorance [i] 29 22 
i!3 8111 83 4 hard [4] 10 25 12 2 Mredp]2712 73 21 ignore [1] 3115 
1 3 glance [l] 27 25 617 7122 J 3 24 ignored [ll 62 2 

glove[ii78l haxdlyp] 7219 tartmyw 1213 iHegalp, 7 3 7 

!517 goalp] 10 25 Harrisburgp) 1.11 "\ £ " ***> illness p] 75 23 
B21 Godm 36.18 477 6817 K ^ i ? " „ . . illustrious[i] 8516 

i l 0 goesp, 84 6512 Jasslepi 499 Holtemanp, 4418 ^ ^ » 
14 19 8121 Haven [i] 3215 » " I 4 8 36 21 
joio gone[i] 84.15 he'd[i] 2122 235 266 2621 immeasurable PI 
r3H good [18] 41 head[ij8317 2722 281 37 4 7714 

9*8* 2 0 1 3 2 0 2 1 healthy pi 4716 4112 4122 42 4 immediate p] 23 13 
£ L ,7 3 5 2 5 4 1 2 3 4 9 2 5715 4211 564 5615 268 3114 
i \ S J ! 2 ? i S ! hearm 5 3 13 3 5617 56 22 5713 immediately[5]2712 
ii, SS SS MU 212 213 283 S 2 i 2J2 6519 284 28.18 5617 

5710 6518 8014 ^ ^ g5 j 6819 72 24 5 815 
i2i« pood-h^m 79i9 heardp)32i5 64 24 homesm 3012 impactpi 31.14 
S4 20 good-byem 7212 ^ ^ V 4 1 3 honestm 8116 3*17 

governance [ n 1617 " J * ™ 611 honesty [i, 42 12 impacted m 214 
5 6 governmental 3 7 6 1 4 8 2 1 , 2 2 2 Honorable pi] 120 impartiality pi 30 3 

governor[i] 492 23 13 23.22 24 21 123 124 124 importance m 65 4 
£712 governs pi 1810 287 289 3716 34 important [8] 415 
,714 1817 3718 38 6 387 h o p e ™ ^ 4912 5 2 1315 213 
•117 erantedm 1510 3 8 1 2 3 8 1 4 3 8 1 7 5325 222 3 0 1 4 4 7 1 

,113 granted [i] 1510 3 9 4 3 9 g 4Q25 53 25 ? 9 4 
grants [i] 38 5 417 41-15 5 0 6 hopedp] 33 3 importantly pi 25 3 

£ 1 great[8]1121 1225 509 64 22 6722 hopeful [1] 2317 ^ 0 6 
. . , . 4024 49 5 49.12 6919 69 24 73 22 honefullvrn 5 8 ; « » . « « » „ , <-J 
1124 79 6 86 23 871 741 76 6 8712 J3«m oL P * " ™ ! ™ - . 6 ? 

mater™ n\t\ 88 3 nopesp] 28 4 improvement [i] 
,110 ^ « ™ g r a 352 j ^ 3 1 J ^ , , 3 2 5 .85 «tt 

, 322 3017 34 24 hours[ii] 2115 incarcerated pi 7018 
•6 9 grounds [ll 749 3

4
2 2

5
 3 ° J 7 * » 3o 7 34 6 3715 73 20 

>7 20 groundwork [ll 7918 4421 44 23 47-6 37 23 55 6 5516 include [2] 9 23 
!725 groupsp] 13 1 4714 483 5011 589 593 6824 i 0 8 
;5S guarantees [l] 2320 7313 8317 86 7 » ? included pi 13 2 

guard [i] 72.17 heartbeat [i! 4813 h f J ^ P 2 ! J ] including [S] 22 7 
Guardians [i] i s heartspi 249 J* JJ JJ0 4712 5523 764 

K-20 guess p]5113 619 36,22 6 3 8:1 8:4 , 7 6 2 5 . , 
j 7 9 8117 heavy pj 84:24 8 9 g 17 9>ig increasingly [i] 2613 
t i n guided pi 16-16 beldp] 10 3 2218 12 5 12 5 43 18 incredibly p] 2221 
,,/ rniidoliner,. An 17 3418 3716 38 6 45 4 52.12 55.6 24 6 
115 guidehnepi 4017 3 8 1 5 41<7 5 6 1 9 5 g 2 4 M 8 fad^d 
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I 6911 «M3 72 23 IJoel p] 3210 8612 |lack[i] 28 20 I 10 23 THl 1815 
7312 7410 74 22 John p] 52 23 8614 ladies [l] 50.12 19 6 3510 40.6 

: 2 3 807 8011 8211 j o i n e d 9 4 L a n c a s t e r [ 1 ] 5 „ 5 8 2 4 [ 6 0 5 
involved [i4] 116 J

1 3 22 413 49 25 laneuaeem 1714 lcgwlative[6) 7 20 
17 131 227 2414 5011 language p] u.i* 1Qn 1 2 ? 1 3 1 3 

3 6 24-22 46 21 512 f 3 i * , 7 c ,0 laP™ 71 13 16 3 17.14 
53 16 59 6 5918 gfmin lapsep]46i3 legislators P ] 5 2 

41 ™2 » * »> i n L a 1-Rff" «20 510 
. , . T / v o / m i , ' ..,. 63 24 Legislature[4] 112 

0 2 2 involvings 517 Josephp] 1-24 l a s t M 1 6 9 3 2 1 5 n ^ 1 3 1 2 3 1 4 

9 5 inevocable[i4]7i3 ^lLmam , „ i n
 7 6 1 9 8 1 1 8 5 1 4 Legislature's p] 

4,3 7.17 718 7.25 JOUineyii] 3610 8524 if^ 
3716 3§3 « i o ^ 8 S23 3 6 2 1 P ^ ™ 3 0 2° legitimatem 2812 

05 S i Si° jSSmSf 2312 "SB" »' 721 ^ ™ 
i716 i ssue im 415 7323 763 J**1*111 M 1 0 l essp] 2517 3711 
17 425 58 1523 iudeesm 925 l a W[«] 615 616 letter[4]701 704 
14 1922 4325 451 ' S f ™ , « 620 77 822 7 0 2 1 802 
4 2 3 4811 4817 5311 * * * • £ { " JJ 914 916 920 fe^ 5 4 2 1 

**" 629 6213 6512 ^ ** * 1 U 921 923 103 ? 2 5
 l

g 0 2 

™U S L ""' J & P 1 " I"" "! ' WIT levdt.,8024 » •ssn.T is tts" !'? "{0»» ^ " ^ §» 
f i t n ?iT< U ! . ^ i - 1 ? 25 7 29 25 3112 69 25 70.10 70 20 
IJi* K 10™ justification [1] 22 20 35 8 3 6 2 43 2 70 22 70-24 71.8 

1 4 1 11 A \i\\ A T< Kathyp] 123 43 25 4514 471 7111 7113 7120 
'625 jo?- j o " " j * 93 472 4821 519 7124 721 7213 
11-16 JJ II keep [4] 57 3 5717 5113 5115 52 6 7216 72.20 74 5 
, , < J 9 " 65 13 7118 54 3 5415 5718 7413 75 4 7517 
6J5 l t Selfp]4911 60.6 -2«r in«m 29 23 606 »14 6 7 1 1 7 6 3 7 6 1 9 8 2 7 

»5 20 JX[i3] 20:24 216 feePMgPl 29 23 8515 8313 84:4 
4 4 2111 2117 2118 keptPl 5725 6124 i a w S [ 1 9 ] 4 1 7 7 2 2 Libby'spq 6917 
.111 21-23 22 5 22 23 J 1 2 . 1014 1122 13 10 69 20 70 4 7614 
'5 20 2 3 1 1 2 3 1 8 2 4 '2 Kevinp] 3 4 1314 i 6 9 i 8 2 i 8012 80 25 
, 1 6 .24 4 24 8 45 3 2 14 43 11 46 3 Hcensedp] 39 20 
1 1 0 jags [11 7514 keyp] 302 3713 494 5112 5118 401 4016 448 
. . . Jamesm 324 516 586 598 661 8 62 
[1A Jane[i5]28 33 kind[io]35i6 4218 775 798 mem 2 6 1 8 2 6 2 4 
/ i 3 18 49 62 447 484 611 lawyerpi 22-8 342 3818 3822 
l 2 1 825 3119 4411 61 10 6111 6619 2214 2218 238 471 5213 
6 2 4417 6016 6219 678 73 5 4512 698 6912 , ^ 5 5 1 5 2 2 

g £ 6621 68 8 6816 kinds [l] 18 20 lawyers [l] 925 Hehte™, 7313 
8 1 8 kissed [i] 7216 laypj 267 7918 i i X i v r l l 3 4 5 

3 5 January pi 916 knewpi] 24 8 leader [i] 4912 wCaL-i . , , <«i 
,< Jeffp] 693 695 584 789 789 f r a " * likened[l] 7522 
J? 70 5 74 5 8012 8216 leani[i]2910 like* pj 4911 
(4 3 ££ 8 2 1 5 8 3 9 k n o c k | : i 1 6 2 3 ^ f T f ^ 1 7 4 ? likewisem 75 24 
1815 J ^ ? ; 1 1 6 9 1 3 knowings 3311 ™" m „ , , limbop] 24 25 
1513 Jennifer [4] 4417 5122 7010 7411 learning PI 2124 3 8 i 8 

8613 8811 88 23 74 25 5811 1«ni*«4i«ii» ™ « i s 
13 Jerryp,i20 48 knowledge^ 428 l e a s t s 23.14 3818 toatotanmm 5218 
. „ Jerseyp«] 718 4220 5414 739 6614 679 7414 
' * , 372 373 379 knownp] 7121 Jeavep]5123 7211 ™ i

] 

0 2 1 3712 3721 382 knowsp] 23 19 feavingp, 28.1 J?™"1" II, 
3911 40 23 4110 24 13 59 8 Iinep] 17 5 201 

•5 3 423 4210 42 18 irnn„nM -XQ Lee 111 36 4 5 9 1 7 

}24 43 25 46 5 46 21 *fPBD2ll*
 3J„ t S " 77 n M l inespj 4 25 4319 

.„», ATI i o i woo 3 9 2016 2017 left[7] 4 7 13 23 -. - . J 
1 7 2 5 S J * J?Q « ? 20.18 2018 2019 292 497 574 luiking[i] 84 
H22 5 " 4

J l*Z iZl
6 2020 2021 2022 643 8519 list[ij 8610 

•811 543 543 540 2510 2512 2512 legal[8] 7 2 2219 l istenp] 4018 
I J i n m - . . , 32-7 27 21 33:4 37.11 73.23 
S m , 235 2916 KoU3a8'^ 625 3 7 2 5 5 7 1 7 7 4 1 4 l ist ingm 799 

(010 J 4?E ] 2 3 5 2 9 1 6 Kubx[i]2i0 legaUypj 217 Litemm 18 
1 iobsm 510 Kyliepj 4518 244 7619 UteraUyp] 28 6 
'8 24 J 0 0 8 ™ t w 4522 45 25 legislation[12] 513 8 5 9

 J 
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014 I 63 22 64"l6 665 Imedical[i] 1213 I 63 7 8322 I 13 25 l4~4 149 
615 669 6611 meet [6] 17 25 555 months [41] 215 1 4 1 2 1 4 1 4 1 4 1 7 

3 5 manner [l] 25 9 61 1 70 23 718 2214 2217 22 21 1 4 2 1 1 5 7 1 5 1 4 

MaTChp] 5016 8014 22 23 22 24 23 11 |5 19 1618 17 8 
x*«™.„.L *« meeting ra 14 10 23 12 24 20 24 22 " 1 2 17 20 1813 
Marcus [25] 36 "Ef^PSPi i««» 2 5 1 9 „, 2 7 1 6 199 1924 204 

320 95 98 910 7512 g l 9 273 27 6 ^g ^ 
010 912 912 144 meetings [4] 104 g f g i J " 4512 4918 4920 
823 14.9 14 12 1414 207 20 8 209 j " J " g ° 5014 5110 5117 

SJI S?J i*7» M e l a n i e P 1 39 55L SET S U 5121 522 527 
516 1514 1519 1618 3 n 5 2 2 2016 691 6919 701 529 53 7 53 13 

178 1712 1720 2020 2022 2513 703 7124 7612 5414 54 23 551 
1813 199 19 24 32-11 32-14 j 6 ?8 7711 82 25 6017 6118 62 5 

625 204 2014 87 5 wmhBrm 65.22 82 25 83 8 £ ? 66 25 77 21 79 7 
118 * £ ? o a P 1 3 2 1 ° membeiSCiO] 42 844 845 8519 8525 864 868 
1 1 8 8612 44 511 9 22 85 20 must [8] 118 1121 
7 5 Marilyn [3] 314 1022 134 146 mostpsj 78 3 0 7 3 0 9 3 0 1 5 

44 20 5011 2514 6814 8710 1120 25 3 3013 3816 60 6 60 9 
8 20 Marion pi 317 menm 8117 33 19 33 21 37 8 mutual [l] 3216 
8 1 9 5425 . , _ Mendlowp*, 28 3 8 2 1 * J J ° » N n 31 31 

mamagem 3221 33 4 9 6 2 4 6 8 4 7
2 3 %\ nameps) 2021 

25 Martha [12] 6820 65 439 6017 ~ „ „ 5 „ 0 U 6 2512 3214 363 
10 68 23 68 25 69 3 6118 62 5 66 21 M ~ 8 0 i " 5019 50 24 5417 

4 17 70 2 7011 7014 66 25 77 21 79.7 mother [43] 16.2 551 62 20 82 4 
510 8115 83 10 8318 85 25 86 4 86 8 1 7 2 3 1912 2111 82 7 82 7 82 8 
4 22 83 21 84 21 mentioned,?] 2615 J J g g 7 251 8 6 4 86 6 

Martha's [i] 6915 3113 3119 36 3 ilrt „ , ; ° " named [7] 26 4 
012 Maryland^ 78 4314 4812 6613 J » g j g { 5 2919 3310 515 
715 57 8 message [l] 57 4 29 9 3016 33 15 5 2 2 1 5 ° 6 ° 9 3 

4 J 9 Massachusetts [i] met [4] 2518 55 8 3413 4618 47 9 Nancy pi 3 6 
717 6823 6825 5015 512 5115 95 95 97 

0'4 matohedm 68 20 midst [i] 32.19 52 3 52 20 52 21 910 912 87 5 
I L T . 4 0 ^ . 1 . „ , , n , «„i«.K*.„ „ « 55 8 55 17 55 19 nationwide p] 49 12 
Materials pi 107 might [5] 2725 « ~ n « , , C 9 V I . , „„„ 
—„*~™„ir.\ « t o 30 18 60 21 74 25 5 5 2 0 6 5 " 6 8 ̂  natural pi 29 7 
maternal pi 5519 JUis 6021 /42a 7 2 4 7 3 3 7 3 1 8 2 9 2 J 

0 1 U matter [8] 413 JJJ . 74 4 75 5 75 9 - - -rh^r, , 7 I : 
1516 17.14 29 22 Mlkayla[5] 33 10 8 0 25 83 8 8512 F f " ^ " " 7 6 

3613 53 2 80 6 3310 33 19 34 19 mother's m 2125 Nearly [i] 27 3 
1610 87 2 34 22 2 g 13 2 g 2 0 4 6 n necessarily p] 78 20 
6 23 Matthews [8] 314 M£kep]2 6 3214 4614 55 8 7412 85 7 
516 44 21 44 22 44 24 Miller p] 311 8513 necessary p] 114 
!620 4512 4918 4920 522 3211 3214 mothers [31 4714 2219 3113 388 

5010 3513 3514 3516 4719 4319 69 4 69 8 
4 8 maturity p] 3615 3518 35 21 mothers-to-be [l] need [nq 5 6 3118 
, , , 56 9 mind[13] 2217 496 3124 38 22 5019 
15 maximumw 396 276 3315 3710 „ , ! „ . 2 8 n 6014 8022 8218 

Maxinep] 3.22 J7 J J 7 * 6 * « 46 24 82 20 82 24 
625 iW«S? 1419 652 S " ™ "%?mlS M3 " S ^ * -
;7f -ao^SJT 33? t\tP16921 2 6 1 6 - ^ [ i 1 1818 NeedlessP! 3222 
['* 33 8 34 9 3412 58 1 8 . 6 9 21 ' needs [6] 10.5 
105 3510 36-23 3721 minimize pi 304 moves PI 2220 3 g 2 5 5 0 2 3 5 2 1 7 
1524 3813 3815 3819 minimum [5] 3122 moving [l] 57 3 532 5917 

3913 69 25 701 3125 32 3 4013 Mrs [46] 2018 20 21 negate ill 15 3 
20 7617 84 25 4015 32 6 3512 3514 ^ l k A m 7420 

120 mean p7] 15 20 Minority pj 2.7 3516 3518 35 21 *, . ' ' 
-13 178 1715 1720 29 211 3525 411 415 neglectp] 2912 

18 6 20 4 5413 minutem 27 24 4 1 1 3 4 1 1 8 4 1 2 5 n e i t h e r [ 4 l 1 8 3 

63 22 64 22 7817 m m u l e i 1 1 Z / Z 4 42 8 4212 42 20 28 9 7116 8118 
7818 78 21 791 " ^ P 1 2 8 6 4 2 2 5 4 3 3 " 1 2 B M V O M P I 4510 

•9 3 792 79-5 83 7 7 1 1 0 6015 6117 6119 „ - — . „ „ n ± 

11.18 85 8 7 9 5 missp] 36 8 62 23 63 3 65 8 ™?lll\25 g 17 
i5 6 meaning pi 7213 missed pj 2613 66 8 6610 68.10 2 3 2 5 2 4 1 0 4 g 2 2 

—oi j 4717 68 16 78.7 79*21 « . , - - , -01 
0 2 meaningful pj 217 4 2 J 7 l r i i l f t 0 809 8020 81.24 Hi6 5 7 1 5 8 1 

=2.14 meanspj 25-25 JJodelpj 10.9 g2.6 g2<16 g3.6 85:8 
8213 Monday [l] 113 84 2 84.9 8414 newp3] 7 9 718 23 meantimep] 354 moneyp] 7310 8418 853 862 265 2714 371 i216 715 765 867 869 373 379 3712 ? $ , measures[i] 515 months 2314 Mspoj 65 98 J 7 2 ' 3 8 2 3 9 J° '224 2 8 1 8 5 8 2 6 22 912 1319 1322 W *" 4X y *Zi y Conunittee - Task Force on Adoptions Index Page 8 



3 25 |nurtuiing[i] 34 20 |0000h[i] 73~i I 2824 291 5612 [parts p] 5 5 56 I 
71 0 [ i ] 31 Open [10] 13 8 4319 6320 63 23 6522 partyp]5 12 289 
J ? Objectionm 7319 45 20 6821 7020 J618 67 3 681 8 5 i 6 

It obectionsm 7317 %% J {J 7 9 2 2 J^."10
 7 2 4 P-ssm 197 

615 oblieedm 3021 ! r i parent s m 7.24 p a s s a g e [ 1 j 4 9 1 4 

6 15 oDiigeom 3021 open-ended ra 6 1 g parental[34] 6-23 J ^ L L , ,55 
obtained [i] 7 22 f8 1 6 6 20 6 1211 23 23 24.1 Posing PI 255 

6 obviously [2] 7019 ooenedni 45 7 26 23 27 2 2910 J1_f 
12 8010 ' l J S S I ™ i f ! , 3714 3717 37 22 Pastp] 2612 30 9 

3 2 2 OCCUTI3123 2 28 5 °Penf rSI11 4 5 1 6 38 8 3810 3811 7622 
4 9 °^vw *** openings 1419 3 8 i 4 39 3 39 8 paternity [i] 74 4 
5 8 occunedw 2711 °^BSSm M g " g22 f* patienoem 569 
? ! 419 5417 82.21 80.23. ^ g}° % 3 ® " paym 812 4121 
813 occuraisi 624 - ! " » « „ £ J g * 73 12 7324 pays PI 60 8 
0 4 1619 17 7 18 4 *™ J ^ L ~ * 74 10 77 8 7815 Peace [i] 3710 

3813 owK«tumtyml3l7 W 7 8010 83 9 Pennsylvania P4] 
013 Octoberp] 142 » g g 9 3823 p a r e n t i l l g [ 1 ] „ ^ , 

A onnosedMi 20 2 parents [104] 417 612 619 6 20 
122 o f f m 29 3 5618 OP

7
PJf !< l

ig
1

4 f2\ 4 25 511 618 6 25 7 21 1015 
7 1 8 6122 66-25 712 Z 7 " M 4 8 2 4

 7 4 7 4 8 6 " i 3 13'2 1314 
4 1 4 73 5 79.16 Option p] 27 9 g n 9 2 3 9 2 3 1513 16.10 1614 
5-7 offer [5] 8 9 8 23 4 8 2 1 1716 18 5 191 1615 1615 1616 
8 8 4514 5919 8615 OTderp]46 23 62 8 20 24 21.15 2319 1617 16.19 16 20 

offeiedrei 22 6 fi9 5 2410 24-24 25 4 16 20 19 2 19 2 
3 0 U 3 4 8 4711 Ortteredp] 2715 2611 27.23 28 23 19 8 19.11 216 

7 . 7 S i ' 7 U 8 2720 297 306 30.12 
Offeringm 6413 01gamzat.on[i,3913 3015 31-23 322 3 5 8 Q 3 6 ^ 376_ 

513 offers [l] 43.3 organizations pi 3 4 g 3 6 5 3 6 1 5 389 3912 39.21 
320 Officesp] 423 371.9 3 9 U 3 9 1 5 3617 3620 377 4020 4022 422 
0 3 official m 10 24 originally [i] 7613 3718 37 21 38 3 424 44 5 4416 

i*. . „ 1 1 ouehtm 64 20 38 5 38 9 3817 4513 46 7 469 
a „ Officially [2] 6915 «W™W °4 20 3»5 3005 403 4612 47 2 4718 9 2 2 83 9 ourselves[i] 70 22 39 5 39 25 40 3^ 4 g 5 4 g l g 4 g 2 5 

often pi 19.17 5914 outcome [4i 40 4 4 3 4 4 3 i 6 444 491 49-9 4911 
1618 60 2 4025 73.14 77 23 %} JJ JJ JJl9 5016 51:15 5122 

oftentimes [2] 1516 outdated m 301 5114 5120 52 6 5123 52 2 5212 
°12 15.19 outfit [l] 57 23 55 5 55.14 56 23 55 4 5718 58 4 
512 old[l6j 2110 2223 OUtset[l] 4812 5710 5714 5722 596 6524 6525 ™ S72 a a-s 22?™ 3ii? s Sii r» si ss8 5 1 5 

701 7124 82 25 overdo m 29 24 59 21 601 60 9 Pennsylvania's [in 
2 2 82 25 83 1 83 22 overshadowed [l] 60 25 613 6212 4 16 7 7 916 

84 4 8 4 5 269 631 6318 6325 115 1224 13 10 

«i «^^oa^inm «^*™ f< %? %%, 5?g iff, £3 2M 

™ ^ " ^ l 1 Si •TTf- 5" 5 ? " ? "» I S y l ^ h T 7 
£L 8S i l ST***" Si S2 S3 *°?*™ «• 

122 4916 5614 7421 7 9 2 4 7925 801 " J6*0 J6*5 

!4i7 7619 77 21 8319 2 T " m 2 „ «« , , 813 8112 85.17 J " 3 7 * J 0 9 

84 20 "PI 8811 88 23 8518 43 20 516 
,120 one[45] 6 25 1113 P-mPl 1 « 8712 p a i B l l t s . [ 5 ] 2 6 2 3 5214 6523 672 
, 3 n 1117 1418 14 23 P.O[i] 8824 P

57 21 59 7 69 23 JfJLt™ «,,„ 

*» Sf Si 82 i - - »» *» ESS* 2!* ; -£ ,„ , SI 
Si SS SS £12 J3S.23 Si' Si & S ^ 2» 
» M 58.20 5822 60 8 Sanersi i 2219 4 7 2 5 5 4 '2 1 M J 3 8 ' - ^ 
'92 6424 6519 6612 *&£**]* 2 3810 6 5 2 1 8 5 2 ° penodp4] 618 
»21 6613 67 20 7119 g f 6 ? ? 4 61 8 particular [6] 1219 7 9 7 9 711 

749 75 22 7611 7 1 1 7 i 3 1824 2317 423 712 712 83 
1822 7816 7821 7821 . . - - . — ^ . i . . , , ->»-> 5212 533 85 152 158 

7916 83.10 85.15 2 ™ " * ™ "1 part icularlyn 45-2 " J 2 6 i 347? 

112 8517 8524 863 parcelp] 442 V ^ l J 309 3225 347 
03 JS?m«,7 P7TtP8]7 8?S P-*»« 139 »» Ills 
( 5 4 onus [i]5317 716 8 7 810 3 0 3 5 9 5 5 9 l g ^ w fi9 J 2 g 9 w 

U 9 000[i] 116 g.J6 g i j j 2 ^ 3 603 7 4 i 4 7415 7418 
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13 4 p l a n p ] 76 21 Iprevious[2] 269 Iprospect[l] 31 10 I 25 21 34 20 5519 
149 planned [l] 7125 32 21 protect pj 4719 rangm 57 7 
912 planning [i] 7516 price [i] 60 8 5415 range m 7517 

plans pi 72 7 pride [i] 22 9 protects [i, 3010 ranged m 7615 
25 pleased m 13 3 primarily m 1718 proud [i] 36 5 rape [4] 5017 517 

2811 primary [i] 121 prove p, 6617 54 3 54 7 
134 plusci] 24 20 prime[2] 3 5 74 3 75 1 rapedp]50i6 5410 
, 0 point [IT] 19 5 4 1 2 proved [i] 7416 5410 

u 20 6 22 23 4312 priorities [l] 2516 proven p] 2123 rapidly [i] 27 7 
« M I3,21 4 5 1 6 4 7 1 7 prisonm 2119 23 6 2919 raiestp] 3624 

S ? 3 n S 2 3 4 7 1 8 7 U 1 P r o v i d e W 3 0 2 3 ratherp] 601 
»-> 2 in rJ 7 2 2 7 2 1 7 7 2 2 5 3 9 1 3 4 3 2 0 5921 705 
018 8 5 ° ™ 5 provided^] 813 rationalizedn 261 
PUIO » " pnvatep] 516 34 10 3916 3917 _ « , * „ . „ , « 

pointed [11 7119 F 7 i 0 6 821 44 7 5713 reach [i] 10 25 
'9 4 points [i] 5014 privilege [i] 25 21 provides [i] 715 rca^!dPi 8 1 9 

policymakers pi problemm 15 22 providing m 1112 n*™*™ 7118 
* D 5 3 4616 6415 794 2917 34 20 3924 icactionsp] 7615 

position[l] 55 8114 8214 835 672 8625 read[8] 522 523 
positive [4] 3114 83 7 provisions [1] 4513 142° 3212 65.24 

3 3 3511 404 7225 problems [3] 417 publicrei 101 6 8 1 1 6 8 1 4 M 1 ° 
otA possibility [3] 7423 419 837 r , 2 2 2 134 138 readily [l] 4821 
[814 76 25 7810 Procedurally [l] 1316 3914 reading p] 6 8 
i 0 1 possible [5] 2919 M16 pullp] 6618 20 22 3517 
'.810 4617 48 20 56 23 procedure [l] 46 5 purem 34 23 ready [2] 1311 213 

8 2 1 7 , procedures[6j 6 8 purportedly m 8416 realm 191 29 23 
24 possibly[2] 1118 1116 1210 1213 ZLJLL^ V, IA 70 4 74 23 7812 

7715 39 23 62 25 PJ?19^ 8 1 1 5 83'7 

>3 potential ra 4 19 proceed ra 20 20 - n m - j - . . , . *<< reality pi 612 
3015 3022 479 2215 2511 44 23 P"151™^!] » * 1 5 1 ? 

»-l Pottsvillep] 88 25 5613 6815 P T O 33 1 48 22 realizC[1] 7 g 1 9 

112 powern, 4712 proceededpi 33.1 „„t?LJ*™ f* realized**] 56 8 
>88 prayingp, 75 7 3 3 7 » " P ^ ? 3020 3023 5 8 3 8 3 1 6 8 3 1 9 

* 6 precarious [i] 29 21 Proceedmgsp] 15-9 5 4 7 5 4 n ^ g really [12] 2012 
» H piecionsm 34 22 78 6 7819 8218 3 2 3 45 7 4516 

^ , j P I * 1 - " processpo] 4 18 nntBT„ nt 52 23 52 24 6218 
preclude [1] 315 F

5 4 5/3 7 2 P u t s . N 7 1 64 24 6719 8112 
£ j ° predecision[i] 63 1 818 915 12 6 putting pj 63 8 8520 86 24 
It] pregnancy [in 2520 1 2M 1819 24 5 712 reappearm 292 
* 2 4 K25 23 45 6 47 5 2413 32 24 33 2 qual i f icat ions [2] reaTonm 6 21 
'2 7 47 15 4910 5317 35 3 36 2 37 11 63 21 63 25 1 ? 2 2 2 3 24 7 1 6 
12 4 5417 6515 7412 37 25 38 25 3910 qualified[i] 4015 £ ? %% l\'\6 

8 2 2 1
 A S 2 1 45 23 46 9 qw™l™gM 29 5 reasonable P ] 2418 

'0 23 P"J§n««Pl 6510 4 f i 2 4 5 4 4 5 9 1 2 questions pq 13 20 4017 
»3 708 M 1 0 ? 2 2 3 1 3 2 2 1325 3121 reasons [S] 1114 

preparations [l] 33 7 p r o c e s s e S [ 1 ] 7 2 1 32 7 3515 3518 3016 3414 3712 
preparer 1 0 1 6 proclaim*, 4911 til 217 TAl ? 8 2 1 . 

,17 prepared*] 72.il J r e d - c l h o m 4 6 2 0 g ^ g j 7 %?6 reassuring*, 275 
:il3 prepanngp] 122 F t a f c g t k n t i m 8 8 1 2 685 7720 7915 " J ™ ™ , , 1 3 8 

;5 2i preplacementp] professor*] 9 25 i ^ receivedp] 27 4 
39 25 43 15 programp] 2819 < ^ 5 5 [ 4 1

1 4 2 5 HI] 33 9 40 3 55 3 
' 9 presence[2] 3614 6 8 3 . mi icVerm S4 9 5 6 2 2 6 1 1 1 7 0 * 
«•» 4624 progressive [l] 46 6 q™Brnj 54 9 ? 4 1 9 7 6 1 3 
i?*2 present^ 21 promote*] 11-5 J ™ " ™ " " receivingpj 1220 
S2? 64 916 1017 promulgating*] quicklym 3312 5412 
' " 211 35 7 35 23 1121 quitep]45 23 6713 iccessp] 50 4 

44 16 4418 8710 pronounce*] 2016 7 1 2 i 50 7 
8

J
16 presented p] 13 6 proper P ] 3916 < lu o t epi70 9 721 reclaim P ] 38 4 

| J 2
 8 7 9 64 9 quoteAmquotep] 3813 4618 

•6 8 presentingp] i l l proponents*] 70.20 7 2 4 7 3 3 recognizern 61 
; 8 n prevented*] 30.18 proposal*, 4019 R p i 3 2 4 J2 .\f. 2J7 

preventing*, 3311 pronosem 8 2 raise pj 4522 513 412 49 24 66 21 
!6 20 Prevention^, 1010 KSPm "17 *!l\ recognizing*, 6014 

prevents*, 74 PJo?? 123 K " " J ^ w 2 8 4 recommendation *, 
'113 35 9 40 6 6418 raisings 22 10 8 i 
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isro 1918 7122 I resigned [l] 5616 I Richard pj 3210 5817 
0 2 1 report [7] 7 21 resolution [4] 9 18 8 6 1 2 schedule [3] 24 21 

816 1024 111 1325 141 145 right pi] 4 5 57 504 8423 
4210 48 24 6713 iesolvep] 39.1 ^ 3 20 5 24.16 scheduled [6] 12 23 

reportedm 8514 resolvedpi 2618 J9.2 J 0 2 5 3710 2222 239 2310 
09 Reportert,] 8812 resolvesp, 151 f2f «5

13 g ? 7 ^925 843 
\6 reports [2] 1013 resourees[i] 4713 64 20 65 13 763 fcoresei 491 

65 1 2 1 2 tespectp] 33 23 7911 8124 82 24 Scotp] 121 4 7 
J representp] 73 22 4722 6019 8 3 1 4 seal[i] 4123 

5 25 7 4 1 respectfully [li 4810 rightspa] 623 seamless EH 1115 
*•" representative^] resoondm 8210 8 U 8 1 8 1 2 n searchp] 10 5 
1 2 13 46 411 responam JM IU 1 2 U 2 2 1 3 2 2 1 5 
12 4 11 4 22 6.2 responsepu 32 8 23 1 23 23 24 1 mmretnAm. 0110 

925 65 67 93 3519 44 13 4419 2623 272 27 13 "SfSS* 1 ^„ S S 
510 101 1321 1323 4921 686 6912 2721 2825 2910 2J;i9 3" }3 _ 2 2 2 

1324 147 1411 7117 7123 73 8 3 21 3714 3717 £7 , , T,-*8 7 6 2 4 

62 1413 1415 1418 8 6 W 3722 388 3810 J J 
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HOUSE BILL NO. 1838 

fO I SECTION NO. I COMMENTS 

2102 Definition of "putative father" 

1 "Alleged" by whom? The father? 
Mother? Her girlfriend7 Relatives9 

DPW9 

2. Cannot have a "putative father" m the 
case of a married woman9 

a Suppose she has been separated 6 
years and living with her boyfriend 
for 3 years9 And that she claims 
the boyfriend is the father9 Is he 
"putative"9 

b If the boyfriend is not a "putative 
father", does that mean his rights 
do not need to be terminated9 He 
does not get notice of any adoption 
process9 

3 What are the consequences of this 
definition9 Where does the term 
appear m the Act9 

a Will practitioners know who needs 
to get notice9 How9 

2501 
2502 
2504 Voluntary Relinquishment to Agency 

1 What is the Court to do with the 
information identifying the counseling 
agency at 2501(a)(3)9 
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OT~| SECTION NO. I COMMENTS 

2 Why must the counseling be reported 
only if it is provided by an agency9 

What about a psychologist7 Pastor9 

Physician? Guidance counselor? 
School nurse9 Social worker who 
does counseling9 Planned 
Parenthood9 

3 Is the Court to approve or disapprove 
the agency9 What happens if the 
Court disapproves? 

4 If the Court is not to approve the 
agency, then what is the point in 
providing the information? 

2502(a) Voluntary Relinquishment—Private 
Adoption 

1. Who is to offer counseling to the birth 
parent9 When9 How9 

2. How is the adoptive parent to know 
about availability of "adoption-related 
counseling services"9 

3 If the Petition cannot state that 
"adoption-related counseling services 
have been offered to the [birth] 
parent", does that mean the Petition for 
Voluntary Relinquishment cannot be 
granted? What about a step-parent 
adoption? 

2503(d) Involuntary Termination of Putative Father 

1 This amendment would authorize 
termination of the parental rights of the 
putative father "if he fails to do any of 
the following", filing objection, 
appearing at the hearing, providing 
money, making ongoing provisions 

2 
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X"~T SECTION NO. I COMMENTS 

a So if this man is a terrific, full-time 
parent, but does not file a piece of 
paper with the Court, he can have 
his rights terminated? 

b. Suppose the putative father is a 
great dad, full-time primary 
custodial parent, but does not show 
up at the hearing9 

2 What is "ongoing provision for the 
child's care"9 

a "Ongoing" means going forward or 
continuing into the future, so does 
this mean the putative father can 
have his rights terminated unless 
he has a substantial bank account 
and civil service status9 

2504(a) Confirmation of Consent 

1 At Line 6 on Page 5, who is "the 
parent"? The immediately-preceding 
sentence says "the adoptive parent or 
parents may file the Petition"; then we 
are talking about "the parent" doing 
various things 

a Section 2102 of the Act says, 
" 'Parent' Includes adoptive 
parent" 

b. If "the parent" at Line 6 is the 
adoptive parent, then Lines 8 and 9 
seem to make no sense, inasmuch 
as House Bill 1838 defines 
"adoption-related counseling 
services" to be those which are 
provided to the birth parent 
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OT~| SECTION NO. I COMMENTS 

c. If "the parent" refers to a birth 
parent, then Line 6 seems to make 
no sense We are speaking of a 
Petition to Confirm Consent. Very 
often, the birth parent signed the 
Consent 72 hours after the delivery 
(or even before the delivery in the 
case of a putative father), and they 
are out of the picture, 
uncommunicative. If we cannot 
get the consenting putative father 
to sign this acknowledgment, that 
would seem to force us into the 
involuntary termination, which has 
its own problems as recited above 
regarding 2503(d) 

2 This section seems to say that if 
counseling bv an agency has not been 
offered, the adoption cannot go 
forward In a private adoption setting, 
or a step-parent adoption, who is to 
offer the counseling? How9 

a What good does it do to offer 
counseling once the child has 
already been placed9 Or perhaps 
the child has been living with the 
step-parent for several years9 

2504(c) Confirmation of Consent—Putative Father 

1 This appears to have the same 
problems mentioned previously 
regarding 2503(d) 

2 Here, and also at 2503(d), the draft 
omits the prior references to filing 
acknowledgment or claims of paternity 
pursuant to Section 5103, which drops 
one of the safeguards that had been 
available to birth fathers Under the 
pnor language, the appearance and 
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X~~| SECTION NO. I COMMENTS 

filing objections were disjunctive, with 
a conjunctive relationship with filing 
the acknowledgment or claim of 
paternity. This meant the putative 
father could avoid having rights 
terminated by domg any one of the 
3 things listed. The proposed language 
would allow his rights to be terminated 
if he fails to do any one of the 4 things 
listed. Was that intentional9 If so, it 
seems harsh. 

2505 Counseling 

1. The most fundamental problem with 
the current law is timing. Counseling 
is not available until a Report of Intent 
is filed. Counseling is not needed 
then. It is needed before the child is 
placed for adoption 

a 2505(c) (Page 7—Lines 7-10) 
mandates that the Court provide a 
list of counselors to a parent who 
has not received counseling from 
an agency First, this is inadequate 
as the list would be provided 
probably a month or two 
subsequent to the placement of the 
child for adoption—as it occurs 
after the Petition to Terminate 
rights has been filed Second, it 
requires that list to be provided 
even though the parent has 
received adequate counseling, but 
not from an agency. 
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V. I SECTION NO. I COMMENTS 

b 2505(d) says that m order to 
request counseling, one must be 
"a parent". In other words, the 
child must have been born already 
and, most likely have been placed 
for adoption, before the request for 
counseling can be made 
Commonly, children are placed 
with adoptive parents 1 to 3 days 
after delivery. Counseling is 
needed when the mother is 2, 3 or 
4 months pregnant, continuing 
until 1 or 2 months after the 
placement has occurred 

2 If this were rearranged, so that 
counseling would be provided in a 
timely way, would there be a 
continuing problem of wasted 
resources, in that agencies which now 
provide counseling and absorb the 
cost, would draw down payment for 
that counseling from the Counseling 
Fund9 

a How far would the $75 per 
adoption fee go9 

3 At Page 8, Line 20, "Department of 
Public Welfare" has been dropped and 
replaced with "Department"—here and 
a few other places in the Bill. 
"Department" is not defined in the Act 
or in the Bill 

2505(e)(3) Reporting Statistics 

1. What is the point of reporting9 Why 
create paperwork to be sent to an 
agency that does not want it, and will 
do nothing with it9 
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'OTI SECTION NO. I COMMENTS 

2. Would it serve the purpose and make 
better sense to have a requirement that 
the referenced information be collected 
and available, on request from the 
Department of Public Welfare? 

3. At Page 9, Line 4, what is the 
"per parent cost of adoption-related 
counseling"? How is it to be 
calculated? If it is to be the amount 
spent from the Counseling Fund for 
counseling services, divided by the 
number of persons receiving the 
services, why would it be an 
"estimated" cost? 

4 At the same location, "per-parent" is 
not a word presently, and does not 
seem to be a word in need of creation 
when "per parent" without the hyphen 
would work perfectly well 

2533(d)(3 1) Counseling Reimbursement 

1 Why should reimbursement of 
counseling expenses be prohibited 
where the counseling is provided by a 
psychologist? Or other licensed 
counselor9 

2 In referencing expenses of "the natural 
parent", do you intend to indicate the 
adoptive parents are "unnatural" 
parents? 

2711 (d)(2) Form of Consent 

1 See comments above with regard to 
2501, questioning why it is necessary 
to identify the agency 
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HOUSE BILL NO. 1533 

ng the Consent of the birth parent irrevocable after 30 days without other changes m 
i be confusing 

Why wait 40 days to file the Petition to Confirm Consent, if the Consent became 
irrevocable 10 days earlier9 (2504(a)) 

Why wait an additional 10 days after the Petition has been filed in order to have a 
hearing? (2504(b)) 
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